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Investment Objective

Baronsmead VCT 2 is a tax efficient listed company which
aims to achieve long-term investment returns for private
investors, including tax free dividends.
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dividends paid year on year

Since launch, the average annual tax free dividend paid
to Shareholders has been 6 3p per share (equivalent

to a pre-tax return of 8 4p per Ordinary Share for a
higher rate taxpayer} for Shareholders who clanmed
tax reliets of 20 per cent, 30 per cent ot 40 per cent,
their returns would have been higher

Secondary market in the shares of Baronsmead VCT 2 plc
The existing shares of the Company are listed on the London Stock Ixchange and can be bought and seld using a
stockbroker 1n the same way as shares of any other listed company

Qualfying mvestors* who invest i the existing shares of the Company can benefit from

e Tax free drvidends,

e Realised gams are not subject to capital gams tax {although any realised losses are not allowable),
e No mumimum holding period, and

e No need to include VCT dividends 1in annual tax returns

The UK tax treatment of VCTs 15 on a first in first out basis and therefore tax advice should be obtained betore
shareholders dispose of their shares and also 1f they deferred a capital gain in respect of new shares acquured
prior to 6 April 2004

*UK 1ncome tax payers, aged 18 or over, who acquire no more than £200,000 worth of VCT shares in a tax year

www.baronsmeadvct2.co.uk

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your erdmary shares in Baronsmead VCT z pic, please forward this document and the accompanying
form of proxy as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee, of to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was,
or is being, effected, for delivery 1o the purchaser or transferee




Financial Headlines

l 3 l % Net asset value (“NAV”) per ordmary share increased 13 1 per

cent to 97 29p before deduction of dividends

Dividends for the year totalled 5 5p per share which includes

5 5 the proposed final dividend of 3 Op, payable to shareholders on
. 14 January 2011, subject to shareholder approval

shareholders since 1998, equivalent to an annual average

7 Cumulative tax free dividends total 78 9p per share for founder
8 . 9 p dividend of 6 3p per share

NAV total return to shareholders for every 100p invested
. p since launch

A tax free return of 6 8 per cent has been received by qualifying
shareholders, based on the 5 5p dividends paid and proposed 1n
6 8 % the year and the mud share price of 81 25p at the year end
. The gross equivalent yield for a higher rate taxpayer 15
9 O per cent




Summary Since Launch

Baronsmead V(T 2 plc

Net asset value total return and share price total return since launch against the FTSE All-Share Index total return

AIC methodology The NAV otal return (o the invesior includinng the ongmal ameunt invested {rebased 10 100) from lapnch assumimg that dividends pad were re invested at NAV
of the Company at the tme the shares were quoted ex dividend Transaction costs are Aot taken into account

Performance Summary to 30 September 2010

1 year 5 years 10 years Since laench
Total return* % % % (2 Apnl 1998) %
Net asset valuet 13 3 164 505 108 3
Share pricet 102 174 28 97 4
FTSE All Share 125 247 319 51 8

* Spurce SIS EP LLP and AIC
1 These returns for Basonsmead YCT 2 ignore up front tax reliefs and the impact of receiving dvidends tax free

Performance Record

Ordinary share
115E Combimed
Tota Share Het asset All Share total
ne{ Net assel price Jaiue total expense
assels value cmid) igtal re.urn” retus ratio
Yeas ended tm p P ¢ p ~
31/03/1999 950 95 65 85 00 104 44 105 06 290
31/03/2000 3100 119 59 125 00 134 62 115 45 3 40
31/03/2001 45 00 112 30 125 00 130 66 103 02 310
31/03/2002 4120 100 54 92 50 120 15 99 76 270
31/03/2003 36 70 89 65 80 00 115 49 70 02 270
31/03/2004 4110 100 63 90 00 141 80 91 72 270
31/03/2005 69 60 116 92 100 50 168 70 105 99 270
31/03/2006 69 60 114 62 100 50 160 51 135 69 260
30/09/2007 63 70 11219 101 00 209 62 154 89 300
30/09/2008 54 B0 91 68 B4 50 184 02 121 80 2 85
30/09/200% 6122 89 06 77 50 183 81 134 96 2 66
30/09/2010 63 67 94 79 81 25 208 25 151 81 258

* Source ISIS EP LLP

t As a pereentage of average total shareholders’ funds (excluding perfarmance fees)




Summary Since Launch

Dividends Paid Since Launch

Average

Revenue Capital Total annual Cumulative tot1al annuak

dividend dwidend dividend dividends dividend

Year ended p p P p p
6 months to 30/09/1998 100 000 100 100 050
30/99/1999 3 80 0 00 3 80 480 320
30/09/2000 3 60 000 3 60 8 40 336
30/09/2001 3 50 000 3 50 1190 3 40
30/00/2002 250 000 250 14 40 320
30/09/2003 170 10 20 11 90 26 30 478
30/09/2004 140 350 490 3120 4 80
30/09/2005 260 770 10 20 41 40 552
30{09/2006 180 9 20 1100 52 40 616
30/09/2007 210 540 8 50 60 90 6 a1
30/09/2008 2 80 420 7 00 67 90 647
30/09/200% 070 480 5 50 73 40 638
30{09f2010* 150 400 5 50 78 90 631

*Includes proposed final dividend of 3 cop

Cash Returned to Shareholders

The table below shows the cash returned to shareholders dependent on their subscription cost, including their inceme tax

reclaimed on subscription

Net Cumulative Gross

Subscription Income tax cash dividends Net annual equsvalent

price reclaim invesied pad* yield* yeld'

Year subscnbed p p p p % %o
1998 (Apnil) - Ordinary 1000 200 800 789 79 105
1999 (May) - Qrdinary 1020 204 816 754 B 108
2000 {February) - Ordinary 1370 274 109 6 722 62 83
2000 (March) - Ordinary 1300 260 704 O 722 66 87
2004 (October) - C 100 0 400 600 276 77 102
2009 (Apnl) 916 275 641 10 15 153

C share dividend calculated using conversion raug of e 9647
*Net annual yseld represents e cumulauve dividends pard expiessed 33 4 percentdge of the net cash invested
*(ncludes proposed final dividend of 3 op (o be paid 0n 14 January 2071

The gross equivaient yield  the dividends had heen subject ty higher rate (i (urrently 32 5 per cent on
of 42 5 per cem which came into foree from the 2010/ %1 tax year for these shareholders who earn maore U

would otherwise pdy thes dadibondl rate of tax on divi

dengs the future gross cquivalent yleld wid oo higher than the liputes showi

dwigend incnme} The new addinonal rate of tax on dwidend income
han L150 coo has not been ncluded For those sharekoiders who




Chairman’s Statement

This Chairman’s Statement forms part of the Report of the Directors

[ain pleased to report an increase m NAV total retuin of

13 1 per cent for the vear to 30 Septembaer 2010, as a result

of increased valuations of both unguoted and AIAT v estments
followving improsed tradmg results the 5 5p per share dividend

has been mamtained

Clive Parritt Chayrman

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Results

In the year to 30 September 2010, the Net Asset Value (“NAV")
per share increased 13 1 per cent fiom 86 06p to 97 29p
before dividends “The position can be surnmansed as follows

p per
ordinary
share
NAV as at 1 October 2009
(after final dividend of 3 op deducted) 86 06
vaiuation uphft 1123
97 29
Intenm dividend paid ¢n 7 june 2010 (2 50)
Propased final dividend payable on 14 |anuary 2011 (3 00)
NAV as at 30 September 2010 91 79

The 13 1 per cent growth i NAV per share over the year
was attributable to an uphift in the valuation of the unquoted
investments as a result of strong trading performances at
many companies 1 the portfoho as well as a sharp increase
n the value of the AIM and hsted portfolio towards the end
of the finanuial year

During the year, the Company realised profits from the sale
of a number of unquoted and AIM mvestments, including
ScriptSwitch, Active Assistance and WIN These profitable
realisations underpin the abihty of the Company to continue
to pay dividends in accordance with its dividend policy The
proposed final dividend of 3 Op per share will take total
dividends to 5 5p per share for the year

The Board 15 aware of sharcholders’ previously expressed
preference to receive income while also achueving capital
growth and so the mncrease i NAV per shareto 91 79p1sa
positive step

All of the VCT qualifying tests had also been met throughout
the year

Longer term performance

Including the proposed final dividend of 3 0Op per shate,
dividends totalling 78 9p per shaire will have been paid

to founder shareholders These dividends are tax free for
qualifying shareholders and do not need to be declared in
a tax return Thus represents an average annual dividend
of & 3p per share since launch in April 1998 when
founder sharcholders subscribed £1 per share (prior to
taking account of any 1mtial mecome tax relief available to
qualifyimg sharcholders)

Since the imtial fundraising, shareholders have invested in
four subsequent prospectus offers It 1s pleasing to be able
to report that investors 1n all five prospectus offers have
achueved positive absolute total returns The cpmparable
returns for the FISE All-Share Index over differing time
petiods are set out on page 2 of this annual report The ten
year Share Price total return from Baronsmead VCT 215
197 4p for each 100p invested which compares favourably
with the 151 8p for the FTSE All-Share

The returns to sharcholders are significantly enhanced by
the varous VCT tax reliefs available to qualifying mvestors
Depending on when mnvestors subscribed for new shares,
qualifying shareholders would have been able to claim up
to 20 per cent, 30 per cent or 40 per cent of the amount
they invested In addition, quahfying shareholders who
subscribed before 6 Aprl 2004 will have benefited by being
able to use their subscriphion to defer a capital gain




Chairman’s Statement

The tax free nature of VCT dividends are of particular

benefit for VCT quahfying sharcholders who do not have to
suffer mcome tax equivatent to 25 per cent (for hugher rate
taxpayers) and 36 1 per cent (for addinenal rate taxpayers)
on the cash dividend they recetve To generate the same after-
tax dividends, it would be necessary tor the dividend recesved
from a non-VCT investment to be 33 3 per cent or 56 5 per
cent higher, respectively If the imtial tax reliefs are taken mto
account, the extra yield requured from a non-¥VCT investment
to delver the same after-tax returns 1s substantial

PORTFOLIO

The portfolio, consisting of suxty-six companies, has shown

a strong valuation increase over the twelve months to 30
September 2010, particularly in the last three months of

the financial year The direction of travel of these companies

1 recorded every quarter so that the Board can understand
overall portfoho health At the year end, 92 per cent of
companies n the potttolio are progressing steadily or better
which 15 the highest level since recording began in 2004 The
level of mvestee company borrowings has fallen generally
and profit margins have grown

49 per cent of the £63 7 mullion of net assets was invested

n unquoted companies, 25 pet cent 1n AlM and other hsted
elements and the balance of 26 per cent remamed 1n hquid
assets or government securities 1he largest unquoted
investment, Reed & Mackay and the largest AIM investment,
Staffline Group represented 6 7 and 2 4 per cent of net asset
value respectively

The performance of the unguoted portfolio has heen 10bust
and 1ts valuation has increased by 20 per cent On average,
the current portfolio of unquoted investments 1s valued

at some 36 per cent higher than original cost Thiss a
reflection of the quality of the portfoho and the effectiveness
of close cooperation and active management by the
Manager, i515 Equity Partners

The share prices of the AIM and other histed investments in
the portfolio have improved 10 per cent over the last twelve
months, although it was not until August 2010 that market
sentiment really began to recognuse the value implhcit in many
profitable AlM-traded companies Nine investees have been
sold outright to acquirers, which confirm the good value that
resicled 1n these 1elatively lowly rated situations This also
supports the longer term strategy of tahing more influential
stakes 1n a smaller number of AIM investments, where a
likely exat strategy to a trade buyer can be envisaged

The exposure to the Uk publie sector 1s relatively hght and
the only new provision made 1s 1n the investment Carnell
Contractors, which provides motor way mamtenance and
technical services to many of the Highway Agencies

ACQUIRING SHARES iN BARONSMEAD VCT 2 PLC

Offer for Subscription

An offer for subscription to raise up to the sterling
equuvalent of €2 5 milhon 15 being sent to shareholders to
coincide with the publication of this Annual Report Thus
offer 1s restricted to exastig shareholders and in the event
that subscriptions are recetved 1n excess of the himut, the
Dircctors reserve the rnght to use thewr discretion in the
allocation of successful subscrptions but will otherwise
seck to deal with subscriptions on a “first come, first
served” basis The full terms and conditions of this offer are
contained n the offer document

Dividend Reinvestment and the market for
the Company’s shares

Shareholders can reinvest ther dividends by purchasing
further shares through the Dividend Remvestment Plan
{“DRIP") Sharcholders who increase ther holdings via

the DRIP will be buying into a well-diversified portfoho,
which has shown positive returns Currently, shareholders
holding approximately 11 per cent of the Company’s shares
partiapate in the DRIP The DRIP may be appropriate for
those subscribers who are investing primarily for capital
growth

Iuring the twelve months to 30 September 2010, 553 688
shares were acquued by participants of the DRIP These
shares were acquured through the market in the Company’s
shares and the price paid for these shares represented a
discount of approsimately 10 per cent to the then prevaling
NAV during the time the shares were purchased In addition,
third party purchasers acquired 127,625 shares through
conventional stock mai ket activity

In contrast to many other VCTs, the Company has
consistently mamntained its policy of buying back shares 1f,
in the opimon of the Board, a repurchase of shares 15 1n the
interests of the shareholders as a whole Historwally, the
repurchase price has represented an approxmmate discount to
NAV of 10 per cent Sharcholders are asked annually to give
their authority to the Directors to acquure up to 14 99 per
cent of the Company s shares During the twelve months to
30 September 2010, the Company bought back 1 56 million
shares to be heid in treasury representing 2 per cent of the
share capital at the start of the year




Chairman’s Statement

The Manager works closely with the Company ‘s broker,
Matrix Corporate Capital, and the difference between the
buy and sell price of the Company ‘s shares (the spread} has
been an average of 2p pet share since their appomntment

1n August 2009 The quarterly valuation of the unquoted
Investments and regular communication to shareholders
and financial advisers also enables the market to have better
information on which the buying and selling of shares can
be transacted

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1 look tarward to meeting as many sharcholders as possible
at our 13th Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday
11 January 2011 at the London Stock Exchange,

10 Paternoster Square near 5t Paul’s Cathedral Proceedings
for the day commence at 11 30 a m with presentations
from the Manager and an investee company plus a hght
lunch The AGM will be held at 1 30 pm followed by a
shareholder workshop

QUTLOOK

while corporate profits in the portfoho compames have
grown, thete remams uncertainty in the economy as a
whole, particularly while the impact of the anticipated

UK public sector cuts ts being assessed Furthermore
international markets are not providing a clear sense of
direction either In this rapudly changmg economic chmate
there will be many speafic sector opportunities and threats
to which the Managel remains alert

Many of our portfulio compames have improved ther
market positions amd operating efficiency over the last year
Both the Board and Managet share the belief that these
ambitious companies can continue to grow and also benefit
from a more favourable investment environment when it
comes It 1s compames such as those within our portfolio
which are the hfeblood of the United Kingdom economy

if the Government succeeds 1n creating a more busimess

friendly and less restrictively regulate ronment, 1t 15

companies Iike our investees whih ive the growth

that our economy needs

Clive Parritt
Chairman
19 November 2010




Manager’s Review

Andrew Garside Sheenagh £gan

Michael Probin

Trading across the unquoted and AIM companies 1n the portfoho has markedly improved
in the last year Stability has also begun to be restored in a number of sectors and new
transactions have been completed 1n three unquoted and five AIM companies

PORTFOLIO REVIEW

The total portfolio compnised sixty-six mnvestee comparnies
at the year end after thurteen full reahsat:ons and four

write offs All new and further round finanungs as well as
realisations are scheduled on pages 12 and 13 Cash proceeds
from all reahsations totalled £8 4 nullion and net capital
profits tealised n the period were £1 9 mulhon

Unquoted investment totalled £3 8 mullonn the year under
review, induding further round financings mto two existing

portfolio companies
The new unquoted investments were

e Surg! C, the UK's leading independent distributor of
spinal implants 15 based in Birmingham The business
has developed 1ts strong market position as a result
of the ugh levels of education and techmcal support
it provides to spinal surgeons on 1ts broad range of
products www surgi-¢ com

e Birmungham based Inspired Thinking Group (“ITG")
provides se1vices that help large marketing departments
operate more effimently, including improved procurement
of artwork and print management The new funding
was used to acginre Total Marketing Service, a provider
of workflow management systems to marheting
departments www nspiredtminkinggroup com

® Getting Personal 1s a leading online retailer, based
1n Manchester, which sells personalised and urique
gifts The business was established in November 2005
with just one product, a personalised calendar www
GettingPersonal co uk now sells over 4,000 items
ranging from personalised cards, notebooks, mugs and
chocolate to non-personahsed items for general gifting

The further round financings were

® Nexus Vehicle Holdings 15 a leading provider of vehicle
rentat services to the UK corporate market and it 15 a
pioneer of paperless rental trading through its web based
IRIS procurermnent system It acquired Adapted Vehicle Hire,
which 15 a ruche rental business providing adapted vehicles
for the disabled driver market www nexustental com

® Tivo small nvestments were made into portfoho
company Independent Living Services (“11.53"), an acute
demucihary care provider based 1n Scotland, firstly to
fund a small acqiusition and secondly to repurchase
shares www ilsscotland com

The volume of qualifying AIM opportumities also
increased trom the depressed levels of 2009 In all

£1 4 mulkion was invested nto five AlM-traded companies
and another £1 2 million as additional capital for six
existing investments




Manager’s Review

Wood Street Microcap Investment Fund (“Wood Street”)
was established by 1515 1n May 2009 to provide flexibility
for the Baronsmead VC1's to invest in generally larger
and more ligind non VCT qualifying AIM and Small Cap
opportumties At 30 September 2010 Baronsmead VCT 2
had invested £1 5 mulhon across twenty-four companies
through Wood Street and had generated a positive return
of 10 4 per cent over the year The Manager receives no
additional fee for managmng this fund

It 1s pleasing to see the improvement mn trading performance
across the majority of the poitfoho companies, some of which
have exhilarating stories as they have grown their profits and

work-forees through the recession Often thus has come from

robust business models where growth has been less dependent
on the overall UK economy, and where these companes have
dehvered superior value to their custormers

Case studies

The four case studies highhghted within the portfolio are set
out on pages 10 and 11

- Reed & Mackay 1s featured for the third year due
to its sustained growth providing a superior travel
management service to 1its business customers

- Nexus Vehicle Holdings 1s growing both organically and
by acquusition

- Crew Clothing Company continues to grow its networks
of shops, creating jobs as well as experiencing fast
growth from 1ts direct mail/website retailing

- Staffhine Group 1s an AlM-tiaded company showing
strong revenue and profits growth

The combined value growth of these four investments in the
last twelve months 1s £4 7 muillion, up 64 per cent year on year

Active portfolio management

The mvestment 1n Occam DM Ltd, the longest standing
unguoted company n the portfolo, was sold in May 2010
to St ves Group realising 1 7 times and an internal rate

of return of 11 per cent over six years At 31 December
2009, it had been valued at 25 per cent of cost, which
tllustrates how quickly the business was successtully
reposthioned towards data-centied diect marketing and data
management solutions The new management team was

led by an executive chairman who 15 one of the operating
partners at 1513

Post the year end the unquoted investment in Credit
Solutions Limited was successfully sold realising a 1 76x
money multiple on original cost for Baronsmead VCT 2

The investment strategy for AIM-traded compames has
mncreasingly focused on taking more :nfluential stakes
through the collective sharcholdings of the Baronsmead
family of VCTs For example the onginal sharcholding 1n
WIN plc, a provider of mobile data selutions, had been
subscribed 1n 2004 but the aggregate sharcholding had
increased to 20 per cent of the company by August 2009
The average price paid for the total shareholding was 85p and
the sale price in August 2010 was 150p 15IS beheved that the
concentration of WIN's sharehaolder base enabled 1ts board to
improve on the onginal lower offer receved for the business

T'he sale of WIN 1s an example of how trade purchasers
percerve good value 1n a number of the portfolio companies
and three other full trade sales have been completed over the
{ast twelve months nvestor sentiment towards the AIM
market too has improved in recent months as carmngs growth
for smaller companies has started to catch up larger quoteds

Thus strategy will lead to the AIM porttolio becorming more
concentiated and aiready the tail of smaller investments
has been shortened with a number of sales and wnte offs
some of these invesiments, however, may be retained over
the medium term as they still contrbute sigmficantly to the
70 per cent VCT qualifying test even though they have a
relatively low marhet value

QUTLOOK

The focus of both the unguoted and AlM-traded portfolio
companies has moved from cautious management to now
taking advantage of opportunities which have emerged This
15 evidenced 1n many cases by increased profits, stronger
balance sheets and higher valuations Hapefully any
improvement to the present economic chmate can also assist
these companies to grow and continue to be important job
creators for the UK

1t will be the continued innovation and drive of these
companies aided by our encouragement and experience as
active mvestors that can generate shareholder value for
Baronsmead VCT 2

ISIS EP LLP
Investment Managers
19 November 2010




Creating Shareholder Value

HOW ISIS CREATES AND REALISES VALUE FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BARONSMEAD VCT 2 PLC

Access to an attractive, diverse portfolio

Baronsmead VCT 2 plk gives shareholders access to a diverse portfolio of growth businesses, both unquoted Private
Lquity and AIM traded companies

Each business has already demonstrated profitable success from its business model betore mvestment to provide a

degree of stabihity and foundation from which to builld Each business 15 led by entrepreneurial management teams
that are aspiring to achueve above average growth from attractive and differentiated marhet positions

The Manager’s approach to investing

The Manager, ISIS, aspires to select the best opporturuties and has a distinctive selection cnteria based on,

. Businesses that demonstrate elements of market leadership in their mche
. Management teams that can develop and deliver profitable and sustained growth

] The company being able to be an attractive asset appealing to a range of buyers at the appropnate time to exit

In order to ensure there 1s a strong pipehne of opportunities, [SI5 invests in sector knowledge and networks 1t then
undertakes sigmficant pro-active marketing to mteresting unquoted targets in preferred sectors Thus 1s building a database
of businesses that are keen to mamtain a relationship with 1SIS ahead of possible investment opportunities

ISIS as an influential shareholder

For unquoted private equuty mnvestments, I515 15 an involved shareholder and representatives of the Manager join the
investee Board The role of ISIS 15 to ensure that strategy 1s clear, the business plan 1s well thought through and the
management resources are in place to delver profitable growth The intention s to build en the wutial platform and grow
the business so that it can become an attractive target able to be exther sold or floated 1n the med:um term The mvestment
strategy for AlM-traded comparues has increasingly focused on taking more influential stakes through the collective
shareholdings of the Baronsmead family of VCTs

This year we have focused on four compares, three unquoted, and one AlM-traded which have demonstrated strong
performance during the recent perwod of economic uncertamty and now, with the help of I5IS have emerged with a strong
appetite and ability to deliver growth both through acquusition and organically




Creating Shareholder Value

REED & MACKAY “Strong organic growth’’

Reed & Mackay was founded in 1962
as a City-based travel agency Dunng
the late 90's, the Company decided
that technology was critical and by
2002 the business had developed a
proprietary in-house 1T capability that
was meore advanced than that available
to 1ts competitors This positioned the
Company as a strategic partner to
leading multi-national chents such as
law firms and insurance compames and
gave 1t a sound platform for growth

In November 2005, the Baronsmead
famiy, through the Manager, 1515,
mvested £4 9m to fuel growth enabling
the founders to realise a return and new
members of the management team to
participate 1n the equity of the business

] ymmechately had a good impresswn of ISIS They were mterested i our business and asked all the right questions
We looked forward to changing from a fanuly business fo a professtonal bustness with family values”
- Richard Boardman, CEO

Swnce the investment, SIS has worked with the business to strengthen the semor management team, and further develop
the technology which supports the consultants enabling Reed & Mackay to delver cutstanding customer service

The business prides itselt on exceptional services It contacted executive clients 1n Mumbai hotels during the terrorist
attacks before their secunity companies did, and during the Icelandic volcano ash cloud crisis the travel consuitants worked
24 hours a day to ensure customers could be repatriated as quickly and effectively as possible

The bustness has continued to achieve strong orgamc growth throughout the recession www reedmac com

NEXUS VEHICLE HOLDINGS ““Growth by acquisition’”’

Nexus 15 an nnovative provider of vehicle rental to corporate users and the public sector At the heart of Nexus s a web
based procurement system called IRIS that 1s fully integrated into both customers and supplhers [RIS automates tradition.l
back office functions to save time and money whilst also offering wide capability of supply choices

In March 2008, the Baronsmead VCTs mvested in the £11m management buyout/management buy in led by highly
experienced ndustry veteran Neill McCrossan who had previously been a VP at Natonal Car Rental

Seven months later, with support from 1515, Nexus acquired the Vehicle Rental Management dwvision of a larger fleet
management business with a second investment from the Baronsmead VCTs Dunng the pemod under review the
Baronsmead VCTs have provided a third investment to support the growth of Nexus, the acquisithon of Adapted Vehicle
Hire Lirnited, which specialises in renting adapted cars and vans throughout the UK to drivers with disabilities

On the acquusitions, the
Chairman of Nexus reflected,

“In one move Nexus burst through the
glass cething It meant more revenue,
more big chients but with ne more
overheads It proved the scalability of
Nexus way beyond our expectations”

Sales are now four times the level they
reached 11 2007, the year before the MBO

Nexus demonstrates the ability of the Manager
to back ambitious management teams with a
well thought out sfrategy to grow value by
selected acquisihons, supported by further
investment from the Baronsmead VCTs

www nexusrental co uk




Creating Shareholder Value

CREW CLOTHING COMPANY “Sector knowledge and expertence’’

Crew Clothing Co has 1ts hentage in
its south-coast roots, having been
founded by Alastair Parker-Swift as a
single retail site 1n Salcombe 1n 1993
The brand has since evolved nto the
fast growing premum active and
casual wear sectors but has retained
its umque hentage and position as
the quintessentially Englhish brand tor
customers who enjoy an achive and
outdoor socal lifestyle

The Baronsmead VCTs imtially acquired
a 25 per cent stake 1n the company n a
£7 75 million fund raising in November
2006 The Manager has a successful
track record of backing consumer
businesses which brought about the
imtial contact with Crew Clothing Co

Since investment Crew has grown sigmficantly With the support of ISIS, the business has grown from 34 to over 60 stores
across the UK and 1t now has over 400 employees Particular success has been gamned from direct sales through catalogues
and web with currently over 3 2 million catalogues mailed to customers every year

The CEQ Octavia Morley commented,
“We are looking forward to continuing our strong growth with our partners at 1515 by developing the Crew brand
to reach new customers both by opening stores across the UK and through our catalogue and online channels”

The depth of retail sector expertence within the Manager helped both the investment decision and the subsequent

development of Crew
www crewclothing co uk

STAFFLINE GROUP “'Supportive shareholder’

Staffline 15 the leading provider of speciahst blue-collar labour outsourcing solutions to UK industry, with particular
expertise 1n food processing

The original mvestment by the Baronsmead VCTs was 1n July 2000 This mvestment helped the business create new,
innovathve strategies mcluding OnSite, which provides high quality temporary staff together with management, training
and motivation leading to sigrficantly increased operating efficiency for chents and therefore much greater profitability
Turnover grew from £29m to £40m prior to Staffline joiing AIM 1n 2004 with the ongeing support of Baronsmead the
company has continued to grow, with expected sales i 2010 of £200m

The Chairman, Andy Hogarth,
commented,

“Ilaving Baronsmead as a long
term wnvolved and supportive
shareholder has brought us real
benefits The mvestment team
from ISIS understand and help
us grow our business so we have
built up a very close working
relationshup over 10 years”

The 1nvestment demonstrates the
flexabnhity of Baronsmead bewng able to
continue holding an investment after a
business has achieved an [P

www staffline co.uk




Table of Investments and Realisations

Investments in the year to 30 September 2010

Bork (ost

Company Lotdtiohn SeCor Athivity tow
ungquoted investments

New

surgl C Limited Birmingham Healthcare & Education mistribution of spinal |mrlants 1,102
Getting Personal Limited Manchester Consumer Markets on line retail of personalised gifts 988
Inspired Thinking Group Limited Birmingham Business Services Marketing services & work flow systems 796
Follow on

Nexus vehicle Holdings Limited Pudsey BusIiness Services Vehicle rental provider to corporates 499
independent Living Services Limited Alloa Healthcare & Educaton Care at home services 2n
Paper consideration

independent Living Services Limted* Alloa Healthcare & Education Care at home services 150
Crew Clothing Company Liruted* tondon Consumer Markets Branded clothing retailer 3]
Total unguoted investments 3,797
AlM-traded & listed investments

New

Netcall ple St Ives IT & Media Communicatians software 712
Green Comphance plc Cirencester Business Services small business compliance 406
Bglobal plc Darwen Business Services smart meterin 176
Marwyn Value investors plc Guernsey Financial Services Speciahst fun 64
strategic Thought Group plc Maidenhead IT & Media Risk management software 35
Follow on

PROACTIS Holdings plc Wetherby IT & Media procurement software 219
Jelf Group plc 8ristol Financial Services Financial solutions consultancy 210
Electric Word plc tondon IT & Media Business to business publisher 179
Tasty plc Londonr Consumer Markets Restaurant operator 114
Adventis Group ple London IT & Media Marketing services agency 81
Paper consideration

Chime Communications Group plct Londen iT & Media Marketing services agency 369
Total AlM-traded & listed investments 2,565
Collectlve investment vehicles

Follow ¢n

Waod Street Microcap Investment Fund 1,000
Total collective investment vehicles 1,000
Total investments En the year 7,362

= paper consideranan from rolled up interest reinvested
t paper consideratien from sale of Essenually Group Ltd




Table of Investments and Realisations

Realisations in the year to 30 September 2010

30 September

Realised

st 2006 profis{ioss® Overadl
Inwesiment valuauon this penod muinple
{ompany dae f 00 £ 000 1etuin?
Unquoted realisations
Active Assistance Trade sale Mar o8 1,044 525 17
Occam DM Ltd Trade sale Jul o4 121 a2 17
ScriptSwitch Trade sale May o7 2,959 363 41
Total unguoted realisatlons 4,124 1,300
AlM-traded & listed realisations
WIN plc Trade sale Oct 04 315 360 16
Ffastfill plc Part sale Jun o7 233 125 16
Essentially Grour tid Paper consideration Jun o4 283 86 08
Research Now plc Trade sale Dec 07 306 70 34
Character Group pic Trade sale Feb o8 86 45 09
Brainjuicer Group plc Trade sale Nov 06 65 20 17
Verg Software plc Trade sale Mar 98 360 17 08
Alere inc Part sale Aug 09 27 2 13
Cobra Biomanufacturing ple Trade sale Jun 03 7 1% -
Silverdell plc Trade sale May 08 2 1 01
INVU plc Trade sale May 07 3 2 -
Advanced Computer Software plc Part sale Jul 08 579 Eze 21
Mission Marketing Group (The) plc Trade sale Dec 07 60 43 o
2,356 653
Written off
Ootimisa plc Qct a7 G 0 -
Payzone plc May 03 2 §2 -
MKM Group pic May o4 6 6 -
Relax Group plc Feb o8 70 (70 -
78 (78)
Total AlM-traded & listed realisauons 2,434 575
Total realisations In the year 6,558 1,8841

* includes interest/dividends received loan note redempuions and parual realisations accaunted for in prior peripds

t Proceeds af £5 0oo were also received in respect of an nvestment Interacuve Prospect Targeung plc which had been written off in a prier penod In addition a loss of £14 0oo

was realised dunng the year on the redemption on 7 December 2009 of a UK Treasury Gilt which had paid a rate of interest of 5 75 per cent




Investment Portfolio

(nvestment Classification at 30 September 2010

30 Seprember 30 Septembe: % of total
2009 W10 held by %% of Equst

Book (ont valuation valuation “, ol net Baronsmead heid by dﬁ
Comgany Sector { ooo fo0at f o000 assers viT 2 ple Tuads?®
Unqueoted
Reed & Mackay Limited BusIness Services 1,21 2,984 4,247 67 g5 400
Nexus Vehicle Holdings Limited Business Services 2,367 2,528 4,197 656 126 574
Crew Clothing Company Limited Consumer Markets 984 1,286 2,519 40 57 241
CableCom Networking Holdings Limited 1T & Media 1,381 1,846 2,200 34 0 6 4B o
Quantix Limited T & Media 1,194 1 801 1,984 31 14 480
Katevend Holdings Limited Consumer Markets 1,252 1,346 1,786 28 15 8 665
Fisher Outdoor Leisure Holdings Lmited  Consumer Markets 1,423 1,433 1,977 28 105 440
Independent Living Services Limited Healthcare & Education 1,161 1,568 1,755 28 162 681
€sC (world) Limited IT & Media 1,606 1,250 1,687 26 B8 40 1
Credit Selutions Limited Financial Services 1,032 1,126 1,253 20 86 350
MLS Limited IT & Media 781 1,132 1,136 18 53 225
Surgs € Limited Healthcare & Educabon 1,102 - 1,102 17 58 a7
Playforce Holdings Limited Business Services 1,033 1,096 1024 16 97 440
Getung Personal Limited Consumer Markets 988 - 988 15 83 375
Inspired Thinking Group Limited Business Services 796 - 979 15 50 225
empire World Trade Limited Business Services 1,297 765 833 13 $ +
TVC Group Limited IT & Media 1,233 293 698 11 130 59 3
Carnell Contractors Limited Business Services 1499 2,468 674 11 83 375
Kidsunhimited Group Limited Business Services 113 113 113 02 00 00
Xention Discovery Limued Healthcare & Educanen 316 63 55 01 12 49
Taotal ungquoted 22,769 23,098 31,007 487
AlM
Staffiine Group plc Business Sensices 249 499 1,534 24 43 35
1DOX plc IT & Media 1,038 1,081 1,276 20 33 97
Murgitroyd Group plc Business SErvIces 319 7 Hmh 11 31 62
Green Compliance pic Business Services 406 - 656 10 26 14 4
Brutines Group plc Business Services 646 595 621 10 18 96
PROACTIS Holdings plc IT & Media 619 326 563 09 54 265
Jelf Group pic Financial Services 761 381 548 09 14 63
Netcall ple IT & Media 712 - 504 08 32 161
Advanced Computer Software Group plc 1T & Media 263 1,158 494 08 04 22
Electric Word plc IT & Media 378 207 450 07 42 26 8
Begbies Traynor Group plc Finanoial Services 231 625 425 07 06 25
Mount Engineering pic Business Services 385 319 413 06 23 13 4
EG Solutions plc T & Media 375 110 397 06 31 14 2
Tasty plc Consumer Markeis 469 226 364 06 28 171
Kiotech Interpational plc Healthcare & Education 275 342 321 05 22 15 8
InterQuest Group plc Business Services 310 270 309 05 18 72
Craneware plc IT & Media 72 180 302 05 02 11

1The total investment valuation at 30 September 20a9 per the table above does not agree to the audited accounts due to purchases and sales since that date
*all funds managed by the same (nvestment manager (545 EP LLP including Baronsmead VCT 2
+Following a restryciunng the effecuve ownership percentage is dependent on final exil proceeds




Investment Portfolio

10 Seplember 30 September % of total
2009 200 hetd by % of [quuy

Book (ost valuation valuation “ of net Baronsmead  held by all
Company Sector t oon frooot £ noo 155015 V(T 2 ple rungs*
AIM (continued)
Ffastfll plc IT & Media 251 475 288 05 09 65
Dods Group pic iT & Media 666 201 246 04 17 44
Bglobal plc Business Senvices 176 - 218 03 05 27
IS Pharma plc Healthcare @ Education 246 268 217 03 10 59
Stagecoach Theatre Arts plc Consumer Markets 419 248 198 03 4% 91
Quadnetics Group ple Business Services 296 176 196 D3 06 21
Plastics Capital plc Business Services 473 151 180 03 17 98
Sanderson Group plc IT & Media 387 102 170 03 18 69
Adventis Group plc iT & Meda 361 197 163 03 31 207
Pragsepe plc Consumer Markets 525 179 155 02 06 36
Autoclenz Holdings plg Business Services 400 134 122 012 31 173
priver Group ple Business Services 438 372 120 02 23 104
Prologic plc IT & Media 310 132 103 02 41 150
Real Good Food Company (The) plc Consumer Markets 620 N 101 02 07y 23
Cohort plc Business Services 179 189 74 01 03 14
Colliers International UK ple Financial Services 470 158 63 01 03 ol
STM Group pl¢ financial Services 140 72 49 01 a5 38
Clanty Commerce Solutions plc IT & Media 50 50 48 01 03 60
Tangent Communications ple BusIness Services 180 90 412 Q1 08 45
RTC Group plc Business Services 355 37 37 0o 42 85
Strategic Thought Group pic IT & Media 25 - 36 00 04 21
Zoo Dignal Group pic IT & Media 438 12 36 00 032 09
aorTech International plc Healthcare & Education 285 28 25 00 03 06
Highams Systems Services Group plc _ Business Services 197 3 6 00 03 10
Total AlM 15,405 10,335 12,781 201
Listed
Vectura Group ple Healthcare & Education 578 1,019 615 10 o4 13
Chime Communications pl¢ T & Media 369 - 343 05 02 15
Marwyn Value Investors plc Finangial Services 64 - 59 01 13 6o
Total Listed 1,011 1,019 1,017 16
PLUS
Chemistry Commumications Group plc  Business Services 500 109 136 02 31 63
Total PLUS 500 109 136 02
New York Stock Exchange
Alere inc Healthcare & Education 157 212 150 012 00 Cco
Total New York Stock Exchange 157 72 150 02
Interest bearing securities
UK T8Il 11/he/ia 1,598 - 1,598 25
VK TBill 10fo1/n 1,506 - 1,596 25
BlackRock Cash Market QEIC 7,000 2,000 7.000 K
P Morgan Europe QOEIC 4,800 - 4,800 76
Total Interest bearing securities 14,994 7,000 14,994 136
Collective investment vehicles
Wood Street Microcap Investment Fund 1,528 525 1,654 26
Total collective Investment vehicles 1,525 525 1,654 26
Total investments 56,361 42,298 61,735 970
Net cumrent assets 1,934 jo
Net assets 63,673 1000

-

*

The total investment valuation ai 3o September 2009 per the table above does not agree 10 the audmed accounts due 1o purchases and sales since that date
All funds managed by the same investment manager, ISIS EP LLP including Baronsmead VLT 2

unquoted, AIM, Listed, PLUS and NYSE Portfelle Concentration Analysis at 3o September 2010

Investment ranking Baok cast Valuation %t
by valuabon .’ 000 { ooo portfoho
Tap Ten 11 828 13,686 525
11 20 9619 10 000 2212
2130 6 093 5,550 123
10+ 11 302 5 855 130
Total 39,842 45 o 100 0




Ten Largest Investments

The top ten investments by current value at 30 September 2010 illustrate the diversity and size of investee Lompanies withun the portfoho
Thus financial infor mation 1 taken from publicly available information, which has been audited by the auditors of the investee companues

REED & MACKAY LIMITED London

High quality buswness travel

Al ISIS EP LLP managed funds Year endud 31 March 2010 2009
first Investment November 2003 L milbon £ million
Total Cost £4 870,000 sales 160 160
Total equity held 40 00% EBITA 35 27
PBT 23 L
Baronsmead VCT 2 only Net Assets 39 23
Cost £1211 000 No of Employces 218 223 www reedmac com
Valuation £4 247,000 (Sourve Reed & Mackay Holdmgs Limited Report and Tinancaf Statoments 2010
Reerl & Mackay provides specialist biruncss travel management Servees (o professionad services firms and corpar tics
‘{aluatmn basts Earnings Multiple 115 hugh touch seriace has been developed to deliver the complex travef requurements demanded by high performing
% of equity held 9 49% ehents from th lgal financal insurance and entertainmemt erdors

“EBITA represents carnings before interest tax and amortisation

NEXUS VEHICLE HOLDINGS LIMITED Leeds

Vehicle rental broker

% of equity held 1262%

All 1513 EP LLP managed funds Year ended 30 September 2009 2008
first Investment February 2008 £ mlhon L milbon
Total Cost £9,500,000 Sales 194 69
Total equity held 57 38% EBITA 12 04
Loss before tax 01 (0 5)
Baronsmead VCT z only Nt Assits 03 02
Cost £32 367 000 No of Employies 32 22 www nexusrental co uk
A * a counts for 9 manth perod
V;:I.ld:lon b é:'] 97'0(;2 lap! (Sauree Sexin Vehole Holdings Limitsd Fuinarkoal S itements 2009)
Valuation basis famgs Mistiple Aexus 15 a broher of car and van rental providing & conprehen sere procurement service for corporate users whih

defiirs access [0 4 huge rasge of rertd suppivers and vohuele types froim o single arddering pant The sysiem a1y ternet
based and offers extencive capahditees at the <ame ume as cost effectne supply

CREW CLOTHING COMPANY LIMITED London

Multi-channel clothing retailer

AlLISIS EP LLP managed funds Year ended 25 October 2009 008
Tirst Imvestment November 2000 L milhon £ million
Total Cost £3 935,000 Sales 193 220
Total equity held 24 08% TBITA 08 14
PBT 02 038
Baronsmead VCT 2 only Net Assets 213 23
Cost £984,000 No of Lmployces 273 209 www crewclothing co uk
valuation £2,519,000 {Source Crew Cloitung Holdings Limited Censolidatud Funamsaal Stitements 2009)
Valuation basis Earnings Multiple Crew 15 a Brutwh hrand of men s and wamen s casu f upmarke! dothing and accessories Al products are desyned
ol !
% of equity held 5 73% 1n-house and 11s range is sold through its own estate of retatl outlets znd also through s onn websie aned v
- = varwus wholesale accounts

CABLECOM NETWORKING HOLDINGS LIMITED Clevedon

All 1SIS EP LLP managed funds

Iirst Investment May 2007

Total Cost £5,600 000

Total equity held 48 00%
Baronsmead VCT 2 only

Cost £1,381 000

Valuation £2 200 000

Valuation basis
% of equity held

Earnmgs Mulliple
10 56%

Internet access selutions

Year ended 30 Scptember 2009 2008
£ nultion £ nullion
Sales 81 61
EBITA o9 T3
loss befare tax 04 on
Net Assels 09 13
No of Employees 40 41 www cablecomnetworkeng ce uk

(Source Cablecomn “etworkeng Holdings Linuted Audited Annual Report and Accounts 2009]

Cablecom s printary businese s (o delner and manage wired and wireless broadhard communicaion seeaces o high
density aecommoddation such s student hatls of resideres Phese man ed services ar provided through fong term
Lontracts i addition the bustaess mstadls petworked commipnration systerny for corpordle tustomers

QUANTIX LIMITED Nottingham

(A trading name of Newincco 635 Limited)

Al 1515 EP LLP managed funds

hirst Investment March 2007

Total Cost £4 B0 OO0

Total equity held 48 00%
Baronsmead VCT 2 only

Cost £1,194,000

Valuation LT 984 000

Valuation basis
% of cquity held

Earnmgs Multiple
11 40%

Outsourced database maintenance

Year ended 30 September 2009 2008
£ millhion £ mulbon
Sales 86 83
CBITA 16 T2
Profit/(loss) before tax 02 ¥
Net Assets 07 o7
No of Employees 46 42 www quannx uk com

(Source “ewinwe 635 Limited audited Annual Report and Accounts 2009)

Quntis operutes in the grawang fletd of IT outsourced vervices It provides remole maratenance and suppart to
corporates that s, Large databuases sawng them thr rust of emplowing spocihist experiuse i house, It also provides
consultanuy and product sales for database and IT securtty wppliratins
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Ten Largest Investments

KAFEVEND HOLDINGS LIMITED Crawley

Al I5)5 EP LLP managed funds

Iirst Investment
Total Cost
Total equity held

Cetober 2005
£5 024,000
60 5%

paronsmead V(T 2 only

Cost

Valuation
valuation basis
% of equity held

£1,252 000
£1,786,000
Earrungs Multiple
15 79%

SME drinks vending

Year endud 30 September 2009 2008
£ muthon £ muilran
Sales 147 le 1
1 BITA 10 11
PBT 10 12
Net Assels 35 27
Yo of Lmployies 98 107 www kafevending co uk

(Source Kafevend Group Limited audited Annual Report and Accounts 2009)

Kafevend provides o comprehensove hot drinks vending seriice qomss the UK 1 sapplies corporate wustomers with a
range of wneing machines typically on rental or lease terms and then supplirs consumables and machae sersiciny

FISHER OUTDOOR LEISURE HOLDINGS LIMITED st Albans Supplying the cycling industry

AlL1SIS EP LLP managed funds

hirst Investment June 2006

fotal Cost L£5,700,000

Total equity held 44 00%
Baronsmead VCT 2 only

Cost £1423 000

Valuation £1,777 000

valuation basis
% of equity held

Earnmgs Multiplc
1045%

year ended 31 January 2010 2009
£ milion £ million
Sales 265 22
EBITA 23 18
PBT 07 01
Net Asscts 14 10
No of 1 mpleyees 96 83 www fisheroutdoor ¢ uk

{Sourte Fisher Qutdoar Lersure Holdings Limited  Diredtors Repart and Finaml Statonwnts 20100

Fisher 1va hev supplier of buevele parts and aciessonies o chaws on-hine retariers and independent shops it fae
warlasine pghts to promoty and distribute sume of the hey internaional hranded products wathin the 0K and abw
huts wmte own branded products

INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES LIMITED Alloa

AL ISIS EP LLP managed funds

First Investment

Septembier 2005

Total Cost L£4,679,000

Total equity held 68 12%
Baronsmead VCT 2 only

Cosl £1 161 000

Valuation £1 755 000

valuation basis
%5 of equity held

tarmngs Multiple
10 18%

Acute dormciliary care

Year ended 30 September 2009 2008
£ million £ milhon
Sales 16 5 127
LBITA 18 18
PBT 01 06
Net Assets 09 09
No of Tmployces 1133 838 www Ilsscotland com

Source 115 Geoup Luruted [irestors Report and Nonnonl Stutumsenis 200%t

1LS o5 une of the leaduzg, providers of aoute domiciun core i Seotland 1S trane carers provide servares in the home
Jar care users an behalf of 1ty Local Authorety {LA) custvmers A well as proving from winming new contracts af LAs
oulsource mare wark 1545 h s supported four avpositions to date

CSC (WORLD} LIMITED Pudsey, Leeds

ALl SIS EP LLP managed funds

First Investment
Total Cost

January 2008
£6,450,000

Total equity held 40 03%
paronsmead VCT 2 only

Cost L£1,007,000

Valuation £1 687 000

Valuation basis
% of equity held

Earnings Mulaiple
8 81%

Structural engiuneering software

Year ended 31 March 2010 2009

L mullion £ million
Sales 64 66
[BITA 19 19
Loss before tax (O 8) (10
Net (Liabilittes)/Assets (0 6) 03

No of kmployos 55 51 www ¢scworld com

{Sguree Coheo Bo? Lamitid Dorectors Report and Consobdated Mirancial Statements 200103
€SC Worldd Lemated (CSC) 15 the UK market Teading structural enginecring software company based tn Leeds The

Company supphes engineering calculation software, budding design sgftware and analysis packages ncluding
TrRBS, Fastrak ond Orien to corpor e lirsinesses worlibvde wath a substanrial presence in South Eas? Asia

STAFFLINE GROUP PLC Nottingham

AlL1SIS EP LLP managed funds

Tirst Investment July 2000

Total Cost £497 497

Total eqnty held 8 53%
Baronsmead VCT 2 only

Cost £3490,000

valuation £1,534 Q0

Valuation basis Bid price

% of equity held 4 26%

Labour outsourcing

Year ended 31 Decernber 2009 2008
L miliwon £ malbon
Sales 1150 1208
EBITA 36 37
PRT 35 34
Net Assets 261 243
No of i mployeus 241 217 www staffline co uk

(Source Stafiline Group ple Fimam w) Statements 2009;

Stafftine Group s the leading prosder of speaiabst Lluccollar { shour outsourcing spiutons ta UK indastyt arth
particalar espertie in foud proessing,




Board of Directors

As at 30 September 2010

Clive Parritt (Chairman)

(Date of appointment 18 February 1998)

{age 67) 15 a chartered accountant with over 30 years’ expenience of providing
strategic, financial and commercial advice to medium sized businesses Until
February 2001 he was charrman of Baker Tilly having been 1its national
managing partner for ten yeairs until June 1996 He1s Deputy President of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in £ngland and Wales and chawrman of
MGiCo Europe Lumited and of BG Consulting Group Limited as well as a director
of London & Associated Properties PLC and F&C US Smaller Companies PLC
Previously he has chaired or been a director of a number of investment trusts,
VCTs and media businesses

Gillian Nott OBE

{Date of appointment 18 February 1998)

(age 65) has in-depth experience of private investors as chief executive of ProShare
(1994—1999) Previously she was responsible for the private equity portfolio at

BP and has been on the board of the FSA She 1s currently a non-executive director
of BlackRock Smaller Comparues Trust ple and Martin Currie Portfoho Investment
Trust plc and 15 chairman of Witan Pacific Investment Trust ple She has also been
on the board of Liverpool Victoria Friendly Society since May 2005, and 15 a deputy
chairrman of the Association of Investrment Companues Gul 1s a non-execubive
director of Baronsmead VCT 3 and Baronsmead AIM VCT

Howard Goldring

{Date of appointment 11 November 2009)

{age 60) 1s Chairman of Delmore Asset Management Limited, which manages
investment portfolios and specialises n global asset allocation advice He was
previously diector for Global Strategy at Alhed Dunbar Asset Management {now
Threadneedle Asset Management) Previously Howard was Allied Dunbar's lead
UK equity director, managing the UK pension equity tund heading a team of

Uk fund managers

Howard was 1etained as a consultant for global strategy by Allied Dunbar tor three
years after he left to set up Delmore He later served as a non-executive director
of Liverpool Victoria Asset Management Limited from 1997 to 2003, specifically
providing asset allocation advice He 15 a non-exccutive director of London &
Associated Properties PLC

As a fully histed Company, Baronsmead VCT 2 ple 1s required to comply with the Financaal Reporting Counal's Combuned
Code on Corporate Governance This Code requires the Company to be headed by an effective Board of Directors who lead

and control the Company s affairs

The directors of 2 VC1 and the investment manager arc requured under the listing rules and continuing obligations of
the London Stock Exchange to have sufficient and satisfactory experience n the management of a portfolio of unquoted
imvestments of the size and type in which the VCT proposes to invest




Report of the Directors

The Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6 and the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 25 and 26 form part of this Report of the Directors

Results and Dividends

The Directors present the thurteenth Report and audited hnancal
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 September
2010

orchinary Shares £ 000
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 7,443
final dividend for 2009 of 3 op per ordinary share

paid 30 Decermber 2009 (2,062)
Interim dwidend of 2 5p per ordinary share

pald on 7 june 2010 (1,692)
Total dividends paid dunng the year {3,754)

Subyject to approval at the forthcomuing Annual General Meeting
the final proposed dividend 1n respect of the year ended

30 September 2010 of 3 Op per ordinary share will be paid on
14 January 2011 to sharcholders recorded on the register on
24 December 2010

Principal Activity and Status

The Company 1s registered in England as a Public Lamited
Company (Registration number 03504214) The Directors have
managed, and intend to continue to manage, the Company ‘s
affairs in such a manner as to comply with Section 274 of the
Income Tax Act 2007 which grants approval as a VCT

Business Review

The Business Review has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Section 417 of the Compames Act 2006 and best
practice The purpose of this review 1s to provide sharcholders
with a summary setting out the business objectives of the
Company the Board's strategy to achieve those objectives, the
risks faced, the regulatory environment and the key performance
indicators (“KP1s*) used to measure performance

Strategy for achieving objectives

Baronsmead VCT 2 ple 1s a tax efficient company listed on the
London Stock Exchange’s maimn market for hsted securities

investment Objective

The investment obyective of the Company s to achieve long-
term mvestment returns for private mnvestors, mclhuding tax-
free drvadends

Investment Policy

The Company s mvestment policy 1s to invest priumarily ut a
diverse portfolio of LK growth businesses, whether unquoted or
fraded on AlM

Investments are made selectively across a range of sectors

companies that have the potental to grow and enhance
thewr value

Investment securities

The Company wnvests i a range of securities including, but
not linnted to, erdinary and preference shares loan stocks,
convertible sccurities, and fixed-interest securities as well

as cash Unquoted mvestments are usually structured as a
combination of ordinary shares and loan stocks, white AIM
1nvestments are primartly held in ordinary shares Pending
investment 1n unguoted and AlM-traded securities, cash s
primarily held in an interest bearing money market open ended
mvestment company (“OLIC"), UK gilts and Ireasury Balls

UK companies

Investments are prunanly made in compares which are
substantially based in the UK although many of these investees
will trade overseas The compantes i wiich mvestments are made
must have no more than £15 million of gross assets at the tume of
investment (or £7 miullion if the funds being nvested were 121ved
after 5 April 2006) to be classed as a VCT quahtying holding

V(T regulation

The mvestment pohicy 1s designed to ensure that the Company
continues to qualify and 15 approved as a VCT by HM Revenue
and Customs Amongst other conditions, the Company may
not mnvest more than 15 per cent of its nvestrments i a single
company and must have at least 70 per cent by value of 1ts
investments throughout the period i shares or securitics
comprised m qualfying holdings, of which 30 per cent by value
must be crdinary shares wlich carry no preferential nights In
addition, 1t must have at least 10 per cent by value of its total
mnvestments m any qualifyig company m ordinary shares
whuch carry no preferentiat rights

Asset mix

I'he Company aims to be at least 90 per cent mvested 1n
growth businesses subject always to the quality of mvestment
opporturutics and the fiming of realisations Any un-mvested
funds are held 1n cash and interest beanng secunties 1ts
mtended that at least 75 per cent of any funds rawsed by the
Company will be mvested 1n VCT qualifying investments

Risk diversification and maximum exposures

Risk 1s spread by investing i a number of different busmesses
within different quabfying mdustry sectors using a mixture

of securihes The maximum qualifying amount invested n

any one company 15 limited to £1 million in a fiscal year and
generally no more than £2 5 milhon at cost 15 mvested n

the same company The value of an indwvidual mvestnent 1s
expected to mncrease over time as a result of trading progress and
a continuous assessment 1s made of its suitability for sale

Investment style

Investments are selected iy the expectation that the application
of private equuty diseiplines including an active management
style for unquoted companies will enhance value and enable
profits to be reahsed from planned exits
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Report of the Directors

Co-Investment

The Company aims to wvest i larger more matuie unquoted
and AIM companies and to achieve this it invests alongside the
other Baronsmead VCTs Currently, 151S EP LLP (*the Manager’)
and 1ts exccutive members are mandated to nvest m unquoteds
alongside the Company on terms which align the interests of
shareholders and the Manager

Borrowing powers

The Company s Articles permat borrowing to give a degree
of nvestment flexibiity [The Company ‘s policy 15 to use
borrowing for short term hqudity purposes only

Management

The Board has delegated the management of the mvestment
portfolio to the Manager The Manager also provides or procuies
the provision of company secretarial, admimstrative, accounting
and custodian services to the Company

The Manager has adopted a ‘top-down, sector-driven’
approach to identifyng and evaluating potential investment
opportunities, by assessing a forward view of firstly the
business environment, then the sector and finally the specific
potential investment opporturity Based on its research, the
Manager has selected a number of sectors that it beheves will
offer attractive growth prospects and investment opportunities
Drversification 1s also achieved by spreading investments across
different asset classes and making investments for a varety of
different periods

The Manager's Review on pages 7 and 8 provides a review of
the investment portfoha and of market conditions during the
year

Principal risks, risk management and regulatory
environment

The Board believes that the principal 1isks faced by the

Company are

~ FEconomic risk ~ events such as an economic recession and
movement i interest rates could affect smaller companies’
valuations

— Loss of approval as a Venture Capital Trust - the Company
must comply wath Section 274 of the Income lax Act
2007 which allows 1t to be exempted from capital gains
tax on tnvestment gains Any breach of these rules
may lead to the Company losing 1its approval as a VT
qualifymng shareholders who have not held their shares for
the designated holding period having to repay the mcome
tax relief they obtained and future dividends paid by the
Company becommng subject to tax The Company would also
lose its exemption from corporation tax on capital gains

— Investment and strategic — an mappropriate strategy, poor
asset allocation or consistent weak stock selection mught
lead to under performance and poor returns to shareholders
Therefore the Company ‘s investment stiategy 1s penodically
reviewed by the Board which considers at each meeting the
performance of the investment portfolio

- Regulatory - the Company 1s requuied to comply with the
Companies Acts 2006, the rules of the UK Listing Authority
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards Breach of any
ot these mught lead to suspension of the Company s Stock
Exchange listing financial penalties or a qualified audst report
General changes in Iegislation, regulabions or government
policy could sigmificantly influence the decisions of mvestors
or impact upon the markets i which the Company mnvests

- Reputational — madequate or tailed controls might resultin
breaches of 1egulations or loss of shareholder trust

- Operational - fallure of the Manager’s and administrator’s
accounting systems or disruption to its business might lead
to an mabihity to provide accurate reporting and maonitoring

— Financial - the Board has dentified the Company ‘s prinupal
financial rishs wiuch are set out in the notes to the
Financial Statements on pages 41 to 44 Inadeguate controls
mught lead to nmusappropriation of assets Inappropriate
accounting pohues might lead to musreporting or breaches
of regulations

- Market Risk - mvestment n AIM traded PLUS traded and
unquoted companes by nature involve a lugher degree
of risk than mvestment 1 companees traded on the mam
market In particular, smaller compaties often have hmited
preduct lines, markets or financial resources and may be
dependent for their management on a smaller number
of key individuals In addition, the market for stock in
smnaller companies 15 often less hquud than that for stock in
larger companes, bringing with 1t potential difficulties in
acquurng, valuing and disposing of such stock

- Liqudity Risk — the Company 's investments may be difficult
to realise The fact that a share 1s traded on AIM does not
guarantee 1ts iquidhty The spread between the buying and
selling price of such shares may be wide and thus the price
used for valuation may not be achievable

- Competitive Risk - retention of key personnel of the
Manager 1s vital to the success of the Company Appropriate
mcentives are it place to ensure retention of such personnel

The Roard seeks to mutigate the mternal risks by setting polcy
regular reviesw of performance, enforcement of contractual
ohhgations and monitoring progress and complance In the
mutigation and management of these rsks the Board apphes
nigorously the prinaples detaled in the FRC's “Revised Guidance
for Directors on the Combined Code”

Details of the Company 's mternal controls are contamed i the
Corporate Governance section on pages 25 and 26
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performance and key performance indicators (“KPIs”)

The Board expects the Manager to deliver a performance which
meets the objective of achieving long term mvestment returns,
including tax-free dividends

Performance, measured by dividends paxd to shareholders and
the change in NAV per share, 1s also measured agamnst the FTSE
All-Share Total Return Index Thus ndex, as the widest measure of
UK quoted equities, has been adopted as an mformal benchmark
Investment performance, cash returned to shareholders and share
price are also measured aganst the Company’s peer group of seven
other generalist venture capital trusts A review of the Company 's
performance during the financal peniod, the position of the
Company at the year end and the outlook for the coming year

15 contained within the Chairman’s statement on pages 4 to 6

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Company's objective aganst the primary KPIs highlighted
on pages 1 to 3 of this Report and Accounts

Issue and Buy-Back of Shares
During the pertod the Company 1ssued no ordinary shares

During the period the Company bought back 1,560,000
ordinary shares with a nominal value of 10p to be held in
Treasury, representing at an aggregate cost of £1,224,904
These shares will not be sold at a discount wider than the
chscount prevailing at the time the shares were mtially bought
bach by the Company The Company holds 7,553,906 ordinary
shares i Treasury representing 10 1 per cent of the 1ssued share
capital as at 18 November 2010 The maxynum number of
shares held w Treasury during the year was 7,553 906 shares
representing 10 1 per cent of the 1ssved share capital

Directors

Biographes of the Directors are shown on page 18

Mr N G L Timpson retired as a director on 14 December 2009
at the cessation of the Annmual General Meeting Mr G Jillings
resigned as director on 28 September 2010 in order to ensure
that the Company does not breach the revised listing rule
relating to the independence of directors The Board would
like to thank Mr Timpson and Mr Illings for thewr valuable
contributions during thewr appomntments

As explamed i more detail under Corporate Governance on
pages 25 and 26 and wn accordance with the provisions of the
AIC Cade of Corporate Governance, the Board has agrecd that
Dnectors who have held office for more than nine years will
retire annually Accordingly, as Mr C Parnitt and Mrs G Nott
have held oftice for a period of more than nine years they will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
of the Company and, bemng chgible, offer themselves for re-
¢lection Mrs G Nott who 15 a director of Baronsmead AIM VCT
ple and Baronsmead VCT 3 ple 1s also 1equired to seck annual
re-election under the terms of the UKLA's Listing Rules

The Board confirms that, following formal performance
evaluations, the performance of each of the Directors conhnues
to be effective and demonstrates commitment to the role,

the Board believes that it 15 therefore i the best mterests of
shareholders that these Directors be re-elected

The interests of the Duectors in the shares of the Company
at the beginmng and at the end of the year, or date of
appomntment, if later, were as follows

30 September 2010 30 seprember 2009

ordnary Grdinary

10p shares 1op shares

Clive Parntt 73,941 71,212

Gilban Nott 23,341 23,341

Howard Goldring™ - -

Total shares held 97,282 94,553
*Appointed on 11 November 2009

There have been no changes in the holdings of the Threctors
between 30 September 2010 and 18 November 2010

No Drrector has a service contract with the Company

All Directors are members of the Audit Management
Engagement and Remuncrahion and Nommation Committees .

The Iirectors who held office at the date of approval of thus ;
Inrectors” Report confirm that so far as they are cach aware, |
there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company’s

auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps ‘
that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves

aware of any relevant aucit informatton and to estabhsh that

the Company s auditors are aware of that information

Companies Act 2006 Disclosures

In accordance with Schechile 7 of the Farge and Medium Size
Companices and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations
2008 the Directors disclose the following mformation

e the Company’s capital structure and voting nights are
summartsed n Note 12 and there are no restrictions
on voting nghts nor any agreement between holders ot
secunties that result in restiictions on the transfer of
securities or on voting rights,

e there exist no securthes carrymng special rights with regard
to the control of the Company,

e the rules concertung the appomtment and replacement of
Directors, amendment of the Articles of Assouation and
powers to 1ssue or buy back the Cempany ‘s shares are
contamed n the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Companies Act 2006,

e there exist no agreements to which the Company s party
that may aftect 1ts control following a takeover bud, and

o there eatst no agreements between the Company and 1its
Directors providing for compensation for loss of office that
may occur because of a takeover hid,

The Board recogmses the requirement under Section 41 7(5)

of the Act to detail information about environmental matters
{including the impact of the Company s business on the
environment), any Company employees and social and
community 1ssues, including information about any policies
it has i relabion to these matters and effectiveness of these
policies As the Company has no employees or poliaes in these
matters this requirement does not apply
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Directors’ Professional Development

When a new director 1s appointed he or she 1s offered an
induction programme that 15 held by the Manager Directors are
also provided on a regular basis with hey information on the
Company's policies, regulatory and statutory requurements and
internal controls Changes aftecting directors responsibilities
are advised to the Board as they anse Directors also regularly
parficipate i ndustry seminars

Directors’ Indemnity

Dhrectors and olficers’ hability insurance cover 1s 1n place 1n
respect of the directors The Company’s Articles of Association
provide, subject to the provisions of UK legislatton, an indemnity
for directors 1n respect of costs which they may incur relating

to the defence of any proceedings brought agamnst them arising
out of their posilions as directors, in which they are acquitted or
Judgement 15 given 1n their favour by the Court

save for such indemmily provisions in the Company’s Articles of
Association and in the Directors’ letters of appomtment, there are
no qualifying third party indemmity provisions

Conflicts of Interest

The Directors have declared any conflicts or potential conflict
of interest to the Board of Directors which has the autheruty to
approve such situations The Company Secretary maintains the
Register of Directors’ Conflicts of Interests which 15 reviewed
quarterly by the Board and when changes are notified The
Directors advise the Company Secretary and Board as soon as
they become aware of any conflicts of mterest Direclors who
have conflicts of nterest do not take part in discussions which
relate to any of their conflicts

whistleblowing

1 he Board has considered the Combined Code’s recommendations
tn respect of arrangements by which staff of the Manager or
Secretary of the Company may, in confidence, raise concerns
within their respective orgamsations about possible impropricties
1n matters of financial reporting or other matters It has
concluded that adequate arrangements are 1n place for the
proportionate and ndependent investigation of such matters and,
where necessary, (er appropriate follow-up action Lo be taken
within their respective orgamsations

Management

1515 EP LLP manages the investments for the Company The hgquid
assets within the portfohio (betng cash, gilts and other assets,
which are not categonsed as venture capital investments for the
purpose of the FSA's rules) have been managed by FPPE LLP This
is a hmited partnershup, which 1s authonsed and regulated by the
FsA and which has the same controlling members as the Manager
I he Manager has contitued to act as the manager of the Company
and as the Investment Manager of the Company’s ilhquid assets
{being all AIM-traded and other venture capital investments)

The Manager also provides or procures the provision of secretanal,
admuimstrative and custodian services to the Company The
management agreement mav be termmated at anv date bv cither
party giving twelve months’ notice of termination Under the
management agreement, the Manager recerves o fee of 2 0 per cent
per annum of the it assets of the Company I the management
agreement 15 terminated, the Manager 1s only entitled to the
management fees paid to it and any interest due on unpard fees

In addition, Lhe Manager receives an annual secretarial and
accounting fee of £36,380 {hnked to the moverment in the UK
Retail Price Index ("RPI")), subject to annual review, plus a
varahle fee of 0 125 per cent of the nel assets af the Company
which exceed £5 mullion The annual secretarial and accounting
fee 1s subject to a maximum of £105,634 per annum (hinked to
the movement in RP1) subject to annual review

Annual running costs are capped al 3 5 per cent of the net assets
of the Company (excluding any performance lee payable to the
Manager and irrecoverable VAT), any excess being refunded by
the Manager by way of an adjustment to 1ts management fee

1t 15 the Board's opimon that the continuing appointment of 1515
EP 11 P on the terms agreed 1s 1n Lhe best interests of shaieholders
as a whole The Board beheves that the knowledge and experience
accumulated by the Manager in the period since the launch of the
first Baronsmead VCT in 1995 s reflected in processes which are
designed te find, manage and realise good quahly growth businesses

Co-investment Scheme

The Scheme 1s intended to help attract, retan and incentivise certain
execulive members of the Manager and reflects schemes which are
used elsewhere in the private equity industry in the UK It requires
all the members of the Scheme to invest their own capital mto

a proportion of the ordinary shares of cach and every unquoted
investment made by the Baronsmead VCTs (except those hife
sciences transactions where the Manager 1s not the lead investor)

The shares held by the members of the Co-investment Scheme in
any portfolio companv can only be sold at the same time as the
vestment held by Lhe generahist Baronsmead VCTs In addition,
any prior ranking finanodl nstruments, e g loan stack, held by
the Baronsmead VCIs have to be repard in full prior tv any gain
accruing Lo the ordinary shares

As at 30 September 2010 forty-two executives of the Manager
had mvested a total of approximately £141,000 in the ordinary
shares of twenty-two unquoted investments through the Co-
investment Scheme alongside Baronsmead VCT 2 plc 1he amount
invested by Baronsmead VCT 2 in those twenty-two companies
totals approximately £24 5 nullion As at September 2010 four
of the investments 1n the scheme have been sold realising total
proceeds of £7 3 mullion for Baronsmead VC1 2, and £0 6 mullion
for the members of the Co-investment Scheme

The Board reviews the operation of the Co-mnvesiment dcheme at
each quarterlv valuation meeting
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Performance Incentive

A performance fee will not be payable to the Manager unti the
total return on shareholders’ funds exceeds an annual threshold
of hase rate plus 2 per cent calculated on a compound basis To
the extent that the total return exceeds the Lhreshold of base
rate plus 2 per cent on shareholders’ funds compounded over
the relevant period then a performance fee will be pad to the
Manager of 10 per cent The amount of any performance fee
which 15 paid 1n an accounting period shall be capped at 5 per
cent of sharcholders’ funds for that period

ISIS Equity Partners - Arrangement Fees

During the year to 30 September 2010, ISIS EPIIP receved

net income of £92,750 (2009 £nl) from investee companies 1n
connections with arrangement fees and incurred abort fees of
£12,896 (2009 £7,780), with respect to nvestments attnbutable
to Baronsmead VCT 2

VCT Status Adviser

The Company has retained PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”)
as their VCT Tax Status Advisers to advise it on comphance with
VCT requirements PwC review new investment opportunibes,
as appropriate, and review regularly the investment portfalio of
the Company PwC work clasely with the Manager but report
directly to the Board

Creditor Payment Policy

The Company's payment policy 15 10 seltle investment
transactions in accordance with market practice and to ensure
settlement of supphier invoices in accordance with stated terms
At 30 September 2010, there were no outstanding suppher
invoices {2009 none)

Environment

The Company seeks 1o conduct its affairs responsibly and
environmental factors are, where appropnate, taken into
consideration with regard to investment decisions

Substantial Interests in Share Capital

Al 18 November 2010 the Company was nol awaie of any
beneficial interests exceeding 3 per cent of the Ordinary Share
capital 1n arculation

Coing Concern

Alter making enguires, and bearing i rmund the nature of the
Company’s business and assets, the Directors consider that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operalional
existence for the foreseeable future In arrivang at this conclusion
the Directors have considered the hquidity of the Companv and
its ability to meet obligations as they fall due for a period of at
least twelve months from the date that these financial statements
were approved As at 30 September 2010 the Company held cash
balances & investments 1n UK Gilts and Money Market Funds with
a combined value of £16,862,000 Cash llow projections have
been reviewed and show that the Company has sufficent funds
to meet both its contracted expenditure and its discretionary

cash outflows 1n the form of the share buyback programme and
dividend policy The Company has no external loan linance in
place and therefore 1s not eaposed to any geaning covenants

Annual General Meeting

A notice for the Annual General Meeting of the Companv to be
held at 1 30 pmi on Tuesday, 11 January 2011 at the London
Stock Lachange 10 Paternostor Square, London EC4M 715 1y

set out on pages 45 and 4o L he following notes provide an
explanation of Resolutions 6 to 12, which together with the other
ordinary business, will be proposed at Lhe meeting Resolutions

1 lo 7 will be propased as ordinary resolutions requinng the
approval of mare than 30 per cent af the votes cast at the
meeting and Resolutions 8 to 12 will be proposed as special
resolutions requining the approval of 75 per cenl of the voles cast
at the meeting The Board considers that the resolutions ta be put
to the meeting are in the best interests of the Company and 1ts
shareholders as a whole The Board will be voting n favour of the
reselutions and unammously recommends that you do so as well

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc have expressed their willingness to continue in
office as auditars and Resolution & to be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting telates to such appointment

Authority to Allot Shares and Disapplication
of Pre-Emption Rights

The authonty proposed undar Rusolution 7 will autharnise Diredlors,
untl the fifth anniversarv of the passing of the resolution, to
allot shares in the Company or grant rights to subscribe for or

Lo convert any securitv into shares in the Company up to an
aggregale nominal amount of £2,238,985 representing 33 33 per
cent of the issued share capital Any consequent increase in the
size of the Company will, 1n the opiruon of the Directors, be n
the interests of shareholders generally Any 1ssue proceeds will be
available for investment 1n hine with the Company ‘s investment
policy and may be used to purchase ordinary shares of the
Company

The Directors intend to use this authonty for the purposes
described below under Resolution 8

Resolution 8 renews and extends, subject to passing Resolution

7, the Directers’ authonty to allot equity secunities for cash
without pre-emption rights applying in certain crcumstances
This resolution will authense the Directors, until the date failing
15 months after the date of the passing of the resolution ar, 1f
carlier, the conclusion of the neat Annual General Mccting of

the Company, ta 1ssue ordinary shares for cash without pre-
emption nghts applying of (1) up to an aggregate nonunal value of
£2,238,985 for offers for subscription representing 33 33 per cent
of the Company s 1ssued share capital as at 18 November 2010, (n)
up to an aggregate norunal amount representing 10 per cent of
the 1ssued share capital from time to bime pursuant to a dividend
reinvestment scheme (which may be at a discount to NAV) and
(i) up to an aggregate normunat amount representing 10 per cent
of the 1ssued share capital ftom time to time (which may be at a
discount to NAV) for allotments from time to time This power
will be exerased only if, 1n the opinion of the Directors, it would be
i1 the best interests of sharcholders, as a whole and the proceeds
of whith may be used to purchase shares in the Company

3
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Treasury Shares

The Company currently holds 7,553,906 ordinary shares

1n Treasury representing approsximately 10 1 per cent of Lhe
Company's 1ssued ordinary shares If Resolution 8 15 passed, the
Board will consider itself permitted by shareholders to re-1ssue
ordinary shares out of Treasury through a dividend reinvestment
scheme or at a discount to the prevailing NAV per ordinary share
1f the Board considers 1t 1n the best interests of the Company to
do so lowever, ordinary shares will never be re-ssued oul of
Ireasury at a discount wider than the discount prevailing at the
time the shares were nitially bought back by the Company The
resolution will also allow the Company to 1ssue shates eut of
Treasury without pre-emption rghts applying

Currently there 15 a two way secondary markel in the Company”s
shares It 1s the Board's intention only to use the mechamism

of reissuing Treasury shares when demand for the Company s
shares 1s greater than the supply available in the markel place
Although shares re-i1ssued from Treasury will not attract the 30
per cent umtial income tax relef, all further dividends will be tax-
{ree and if these shares are subsequently sold no capital gains tax
15 payabie by qualifying sharcholders

Directors’ Authority to Purchase Shares

The current authonty of the Company to make marhet purchases
of up to approximately 14 99 per cent of its 1ssued share capital
expires at the end of the Annual General Meeting and Resolution
9 seeks renewal of such authority until the next Annual General
Meeting (or the expiry of 13 months after the passing of the
resolution, if earher} The price paid for shares will not be less
than the nomnal value nor more than the maximum amount
permitted to be paid in accordance with the rules of the UK
Listing Authonty This power will be exercised only if, in the
ommion of the Duectors, a repurchase would he in the best
interests of shareholders as a whole Any shares repurchased
under this authonty will either be cancelled or held in [reasury
for future re-sale in appropriate market condihens

Notice of General Meetings

The Board believes that 1t 15 1n the best interests of shareholders
of the Company to have the abilitv to call meetings on 14 days’
clear notice should a matter require urgency The Board 15
therefore proposing Resclution 10 Lo approve the reduction in
the mimimum notice period from 21 clear days to 14 clear days
for all general meetings other than annual general meetings
The Directors do not intend to use less than 21 clear days notice
unless immediate action 1s required

Cancellation of Share Premium and Capital
Redemption Reserves

One of the main prinaiples of company law 1s that the capntal
of a company should be maintained and, therelore, a company
with share capital must obtain proper consideration for the
shares that 1t 1ssues and must not return funds which have been
subscribed for shares cxcept in certain prescribed ways The
principle of maintenance of capital underhes various provisions
of the Comparnies Act 2006 For example, a company may only
make distributions to its members out of distnibutable profits
and a company may only buy back its own shares in hmited
circumstances

A company can, however, reduce its share capital in
arrcumstances where creditors will not be adversely affected,
provided that the company complies with certain procedural
requirements A companv may reduce its capital by special
resolution and subject to confirmation by the court A speetal
reserve will then be created from the sums set {ree from such a
cancdllation which can be regarded as a distnbutable reseryve

The Companv has completed previcus cancellabions of its share
premium and the speaial reserve created by such canceltation has
assisted the Company n buying back shares, writing off fosses
and enhanung the abihty to make distributions

Buy backs can result in the creation of capital redemption
reserves and the 1ssue of new Shares (i particular in connection
with the Offer) will create further share premium The Board,
therefore, considers Il appropriate to obtain approval of
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to cancel further
share premwum and capital redemplion reserves {subject to court
sanction) to create further distributable reserves 1o fund buy
backs and distributions, to set off or write off losses and for other
corporale purposes of the Company

Resolution 11 Lo be proposed at the Annudl General Meeting will
authorise Lhe cancellation of the amount standing Lo the cradit of
the share premium account of the Company al the dale an order
confirming such cancellation s made

Resolution 12 Lo be proposed at the Annual General Meeting will
authonse the cancellation of the amount standing fo the credil
of the capital redemption reserve of the Company at the date an
order confirming such cancellabion 15 made

By Order of the Bo
ISIS EP LLP
Secretary

100 Wood Street
Londen EC2V 7AN

19 November 2010

Bucer L



Corporate Governance

This Corporate Governance Statement forms part of the Report of the Directors

Arrangements m respect of corporate governance, appropnate

to a venture capital trust, have been made by the Board The
Board has considered the principles and recommendations of

the Association of Investment Companies’ Code of Corporate
Governance 1ssued 1n March 2009 (AIC Code’) by relerence to

the AIC Corporate Governance Guide [or Investment Compames
(AIC Guide’) A copy of the AIC Code can be found at www theaic
co uk The AIC Code, as explained by the AIC Guide, addresses

all the principles set out 1n Section 1 of the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance 1ssued by the Finanaial Reporting Counai
1n fune 2008 {‘the Combined Code’), as well as setting out
additional principles and recommendations on issues which are of
specific relevance to the Company A copy ol the Combined Code
can be found at www frc org uk

The Board considers that reporting against the principles and
recommendations of the AIC Code, and by reference to the AIC
Guide (which incorperates the Combined Code) will provide better
information to shareholders

Except as disclosed below, the Company complied throughout

the period with the recommendations of the AIC Code and the
relevant provisions of Section 1 of the Combined Code Since all
the Directors are non-executive the provisions of the Combined
Code in respect of the role of the chief executive are not relevant
to the Company and, hikewse, the provisions of the Combined
Code relating to Directors’ remuneration are not relevant except
1n so [ar as they relate speafically to non-executive Directors tor
the reasons set out 1n the AIC Guide, and n the preamble to the
Combined Code, the Board considers that these provisions are not
relevant to the Company, being an eaternally managed venture
capital trust The Company has therefore not reported further in
respect of these provistons

In view of the requirement tn the Articles of Association that all
Directors be subject to retirement by rotation, the Board considers
that 1t 15 not appropuiate for the Directors to be appointed for a
specified term as recommended by principle 3 of the AIC Code
and provision A 7 2 of the Combined Code However, the Board
has agreed that each Director will retire and, if appropriate, seek
re-election after each three years' service, and annually after
serving on the Board tor more than nine years Whilst notice of
the Company’s annual general meeting held on 14 December
2009 wads served on shareholders i sufticent bme to meet the
Company’s slatutory deadling, it did not meet the Combined
Code recommendation Lhat the notice be sent to sharehalders

at least 20 working days before the meeting 1he Board has
taken account of this requirement when setting the date for the
forthcoming annual general meeting

The Board, of which Mt Parritt 1s Chairman, consists solely of
non-executive Directors and Mrs Nott s Senior independent
Director All Directors are considered by the Board to be
independent of the Company 's Manager

As explained earlier, Mirs Nott 1s a director of Baronsmead AIM
VCT ple and Baronsmead VCT 3 ple, both of which are managed
by 1515 EP LLP The Board does not consider that a Director’s

tenur e reduces their abihity to act independently The Board
believes that, as a whole, 1t comprises an appropnate balance

of skills, experience and knowledge It also believes that each
Director 1s independent 1n character and judgement and that there
are no relationships or arcumstances which are likely to affect
the judgement of any Director

The Company hds no executive Directors or employees

A management agreement between the Company and its
Manager, ISIS EP 1 LP, sets out the matters over which the
Manager has authority and the limits above which Board
approval must be sought All other matters, including strategy,
investment and dividend policies, gearing, and corporate
governance procedures, are reserved for the approval of the Board
of Directors The Beard meets al least quarterly and recerves full
information about the Company’s investment performance,
assets, habilties and other relevant information n advancc

of Board meetings The Manager, 1n the absence al exphait
nstructions from the Board 1s empowered to exeraise discretion
n the use of the Company ‘s voting rights All shareholdimgs

are voted, where practicable, in accordance with the Manager’s
own corporate governance pohicy, which 1s ta seek to maximise
shareholder value by constructive use of votes at company
meetings and by endeavouring to use its influence as an investor
with a prinapled approach to corporate governance

Throughout the period a number of commuttees have been
in operation The commuttees are the Audit Commuttee, the
Management Engagement and Remuneration Commuttee and the |
Nomunation Commuttee |

The Audit Commuttee, chaired by Mr Goldting, comprises the full
Board and operates within clearly defined terms of ieference Mr
Goldring replaced Mr Parritt as chairman of the Audit Commuttee
on 11 November 2010 The duties of the Audit Commuttec
indude reviewing the annual and interim accounts, the system
of internal controls, the terms of appuintment of the auditors
together with their remuneration, and ensuring that auditor |
objectivity and independence 1s safeguarded 1n the provision

of non audil services by the auditors It also provides a forum
through which the auditors may report to the Board of Directors
and meets at least twice yearly

The Management Engagement and Remuneration Commitlee,
chaired by Mrs Nott comprises the full Board and reviews the
appropnateness of the Manager's appomtment together with the
terms and cenditions thereof on a regular basis

1 he Nonunation Commuitee, chaired by Mrs Nott, comprises
the full Board and 1s convened for the purpose of considering
the appeintment of additional Directors as and when considered
appropriate In considering appointments to the Board, the
Nomination Commttee takes into account the ongeing
requirements of the Company and the need to have a balance
of skills and experience within the Board A formal independent
recruitment process 1s urklerway to appoint a fourth director

During the period the performance of the Board, committees
and individual Dhrectors was evaluated through an assessment
process, led by the Chairman The performance of the Chairman
was evaluated by the other Directors under the leadership of the
Sermor Independent Director

During the periad the performance of the Board, commuttees !
and individual Directors was evaluated through an assessment

process The Directors met as a group to discuss performance

during the year, Lhe existing corporate governance arrangenients

and areas where the Board and individual directors could develop

15
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The following table sets out the number of Board and Commuttee
meetings held during the year to 30 September 2010 and the
number of meetings attended by each Director

TR N
Iy et ftapd
(S (®1 feh b Fatei P MTING 10T
J: TR Tumrr B Lor v oM VL R Y]
ikt AR 2 Hed Aeraeg Hotr Ay M A mdcd
Clive Pamitt 5 5 2 b3 1 1 2 2
Codfrey Jilhngst 5 4 ? 2 1 1 2 2
Gilhian Nott 5 4 z 2 1 1 z 1
Nicholas Timpson* 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Howard Goldring 5 5 2 2 1 ] 1 1
*retired on 14 December 2009
tresigned on 28 Septemper 2010

Individual Directors may, at the expense of the Companv, stek
independent professional advice an anv matter that concerns
them 1n the furtherance of their duties

Relations with Shareholders

The Company welcomes the views of sharcholders and places
great importance on communication with its shareholders The
Chairman and other Directors are available to meet sharcholders
If required The Annual General Meeting of the Company provides
a forum both formal and informal, for shareholders to meet and
discuss 1ssues with the Directors and Manager of the Company
Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting on 11 January 2011 can be found in the
Notice of Meeting on pages 45 and 46 Sharehalders secking to
communicate with the Board can do so by contacting the Investor
Relations Manager in Lhe first instance

Internal Controls

The Board 15 responsible for the Company’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness The Board has
therefore estabhshed an ongoing process designed to meet Lhe
particular needs of the Company 1n managing the risks to
which 1t 1s exposed The process adopted 15 one whereby the
Board identifies all of the risks to winch the Company s exposed
including among others market risk, investment risk, operational
and regulatory risks which are recorded on a risk register The
controls employed to mitigate these risks are identified and the
residual risks are rated taking into account the impact of the
mitigating lactors

This register 15 updated at least twice a year and reports produced
to the board highlighting any material changes in the nature of
each risk and where necessary corrective action taken A lormal
annual review of the nisks and related controls 15 carried out by
the audit commuttee

These procedures are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
risk and by their nature can provide reasonable but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss The
Board momtors the investment performance ol the Company in
comparison to a benchmark index and to comparable venture
capital Lrusts at each Board meeting The Board also reviews

the Company’s aclivities since the previous Board meeling to
ensure that the Manager adheres to the agreed investment policy
and approved investment guidelines and, if necessary, approve
changes to such policy and guidelines

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function ‘
and has concluded that the systems and procedures employed by

the Manager, provide sufficient assurance that a sound system of

internal control, which safeguards shareholders’ investment and

the Company's assets, 1s mamntained Annternal audit function,

specific to the Companvy, 1s therefore considered unnecessary



Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Board has prepared thas report, 1in accordance with the
requurements of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medmum Sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulahons 2008
An ordimary resolution for the approval of this ruport wall be put.
to the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meching

I'he law requares the Company’s audrtors, KPMG Audit Plc, to
audit certamn of the disclosures provided Where cisclosures have
been audited, they are indicated as such The auditors’ opimon 15
urcluded in the ‘Independent Auditors” Report”

Board of Directors and their Fees

The Board which is profiled on page 18 consists solely of
mndependent non-executive Drrectors and consuders at least
annually the level of the Board's fees, 1n accordance with the AIC
Code of Corporate Governance The Company Secretary provides
information on comparative levels of Directors tees to the Board
mn advance of cach review

The Board concluded following a review of the lovel of Directors
fees for the forthcoming year, and takirg account of the fees pad
to other dircctors in the Company's sector, that, to reflect the
ncrease 1 the amount and quality of work requured of Directors
of VCTs it was appropriate to mcrease the Directors fees, broadly
n hne with iflation, to £16,500 pa and the Charman’s fee to
£24 750 pa from 1 October 2010

['he Management kngagement and Remuneration Commuttee
compnses all the Directors of the Company The Charrman of
the Commuttee 15 Mrs G Nott As the Company has no executive
Dhrectors, the Management Engagement and Remuneraton
Commuttee mweets, at least annually, to review the remuneration
and terms of appomntment of the Manager

Policy on Directors’ Fees

The Beard s policy 15 that the ramunerahon of non-executive
Dhrectors should reflect the expunence of the Board as a whole,

be fair and comparable to that of other refevant venture capital
trusts that are sumilar in s1ze and have similar investment
objectives and structures Furthermore the level of remuneration
should be sufficent te attract and retan the Directors needed

to oversee properly the Company and to refleet the speafic
arcumstances of the Company, the duties and respensibihties of
the Drrectors and the value and amount of time commuitted to the
Company s affairs It 15 intunded that this pohcy will continue for
the year ending 30 September 2011 and subsequent years

Directors’ service contracts

It 1s the Board's policy that Dnrectors do not have service contracts,
but new Dhrectors are provided with a letter of appomntment

Date of Due date for

onginal Rre-election/
Director appointment election
C Parntt 18 February 1598 AGM 2011
G jlbings 18 February 1998 N/A
G Nott 18 February 1993 AGM 2011
N Timpson 18 February 1998 NfA
H Goldning 11 November 2009 AGM 2013

The terms of Directors’ appomtments provide that Directors should
retire and be subject to re-elechon at the first Annual General
Meeting after thewr appointment Directors are thereafter obliged
to retire by rotation, and to offer themselves for re-electhion by
shareholders at least every threc years after that In accordance
with the Code of Corporate Governance, Directors who have
served on the Board for more than € years must offer themselves

for re-election on an annual basis There 15 no notice penod and no
provision for compensation upon early termunation of appomtment

Company performance

The Board 1s responsible for the Company’s mnvestment strategy
and performance, although the management of the Company’s
mvestment portfoboas delegated to the Manager through the
management agreement, as referred to m the ‘Report of the
Dhrectors” The graph below compares, for the five years ended
30 Septemhber 2010, the percentage change over each period

1 the total return (assuming all dividends are remnvested) to
ordmnary shareholders compared to the percentage change over
¢ach penod i total shareholder return on a nohonal investmennt
made up of sharcs of the same hind and number as those by
reference to whuch the FTSE All-Share Index 15 calculated  Thus
index was chosen for companson purposes asif represents a
widely understood broad equity market index agamnst which
mvestors can measure the relative performance of the Company
An explanation of the performance of the Company 1s given 1n
the Charrman'’s Statement and Manager‘s Roview

Ordinary Share price total return and the FTSE Ali-Share index total return
performance graph

Directors’ emoluments for the year (audited)

The Directors who served in the pertod receivid the following
emoluments in the form of fees

Fees fees

2010 2008

£ £

C Parnte 23,500 21,000
G [ilings" 15,500 14,000
G Nott 15,500 14,000
N Timpson* 3,100 14,000
H Geldang® 13,751 -
Total 7L351 63 000

"Resigned on 28 September 2010
TAppowmted on [T November 2009
Retired on T4 December 2009

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed by

Gillian Nott
Chairman of the Management Engagem¢
Remuneration Comnuttee

19 November 2010

.
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report and the hinancial Statements in accordance with applicable law and

regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financal statements for each finanmal year Under that law they have elected to prepare

the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards (“UK GAAP")

The finanuial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss

of the Company for that period

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

@ select suitable aceounting polictes and then applv them consistently,

® make judgments and estimates that are reasenable and prudent,

® state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards {“UK GAAP ') have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explamned 1n the financial statements, and

® prepare the finanaal statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s nappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue 1 business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that disclose wilth reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and

detect fraud and other nregulanties

Lnder applicable lave and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Repart (including Business Reviewl,
Directors’ Remuneralion Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The Direclors are responsible for the mamntenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information ncluded on the Company ‘s
website, www baronsmeadvet2 co uk Visitors to the website should be aware that legislation in the UK goverming the preparation and
disseminalion of financial statements may differ from legislalion n other junsdictions

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of
the annual financial report

we confirm that to the best of our knowledge
® the financal statements, prepared in accordance with the apphcable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the
assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company, and

o the development and performance of the business and the position of the issuer
sks and uncertainties that they face

@ the Directors’ Report includes a fair rey,
together with a description ol the p

On behalf of the Board,
Clive A Parritt

Chairman

19 November 2010



Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Baronsmead VCT 2 plc

We have audited the finanaal statements ol Baronsmead VC1 2 ple for the penad ended 30 september 2010 which comprise the Inconw
Staternent, the Reconuliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds, the Ralance Sheet, the Cash How Statement and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has been apphed in theur preparation is applicahle law and UK Accounting Standards {LIK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solely to the Company’s members, 4s a body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies At 2006 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state Lo them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose 10 the lullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anvone other
than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiities Statement set out on page 28, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of
{he financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Qur responsibility 1s to audit the finanoal statements in
accordance with applicable law and [nternational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply wath the
Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethucal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of finanaal statements 1 provided on the APB’s web-site at www trc org uk/apb/scope/UKP

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinton the finanoal statements

® guve a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 September 2010 and of 1ts profit for the vear then ended,
@ have been properly prepared 1n accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

® have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opiruon

@ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be auchted has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compamies Act 2006,
and

® the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financal year for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Ulnder the Companes Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, 1n eur opuuon

® adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by
us, or

® the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns, or

® certamn disclosures of direclors’ remuneration speafied by law are not made, or

@ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

@ the directors’ statement, set oul on page 23, 10 relation to going concern and

@ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relaling to the company’s comphance with the nine provistons of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for our review gw P

slmon Pashby (Senior Statutory Auditer)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor

Edinburgh
19 Novermber 2010




Income Statement

For the year ended 30 September 2010

w010 2009
Revenue Capltal Total Revenue Capital Tolal
Notes £'000 E'ooc £'o00 f oo E’ooo { ooo
Unrealised gains on investments 9 - 4,924 4,924 - 343 343
Realised gains/(losses) on investments 9 - 1,875 1,875 - (154) (154)
Income 2 2,218 - 1,8 1,297 - 1,297
Recoverable VAT 3 - - - 68 209 367
Investment management fee 4 (304) (910} G.14) (291} & (+163)
Other expenses 5 (360) - (360) {405) - (405)
profit/(loss) on ordinary activitles before taxation 1,554 5,889 7.443 669 (384} 285
Taxation on grdinary activities 6 (354) 354 - {120} 120 -
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 1,200 6,243 7.443 549 (264) 285
Return per ordinary share
Basic 8 1779 9 19p 10 96p 0 83p (o 40p) ©43p

The Total column of this statement 1$ the profit and loss account of the Company
All revenue and capital items i this statement denive from continuing operations

No operations were acquired or discontinued in the year

Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds

For the year ended 30 September 2010

2010 2009
Notes £'000 £'0o0
opening shareholders’ funds 61,215 54,822
profit for year 1,443 285 .
purchase of shares for treasury 13 (1,225) (582)
Increase 1n 1ssued share capital - 8,881
Expenses on share issue and buybacks 13 (6) (a77}
Dividends pard 7 (3,754} (714}
Closing shareholders’ funds 63,673 61,215

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these siatements




Balance Sheet

As at 3¢ September 2010

—
! 2010 2009
Notes i £ coo { 000
Flxed assets
Investments 9 61,739 59,529
Current assets
Debtors 10 479 554
Cash at bank and on deposit 1,868 1,684
2,347 2,238
Creditors (amounts falling due within one year) n {a13) (552)
Net current assets 1,934 1 686
Net assets 63,673 61,215
Capital and reserves
Called up share capnal 12 7.473 7433
Share premium account 13 12,573 12,533
Capital redemption reserve 13 9,254 9,254
Capital reserve 13 27,550 29,665
Revaluation reserve 13 5,378 1,569
Revenue reserve 13 7,405 681
Equity shareholders’ funds 14 63,623 61,215
Net asset value per share
- Bastc 4 94 79p 89 06p
- Treasury 14 93 42p 8813p

The financial statements on pages 30 10 32 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 November 2010 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

CLIVE A PARRITT E

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet
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Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 30 September 2010

2010 2009
Notes f'oo0 f oce

Operating activities
Investment income recerved 1,991 1,300
Interest received 4 123
Recoverable VAT - 1,108
Investiment maragement fees {1,202} {1,134)
oOther cash payments (373) (434)
Net cash inflow from operating acuvities 16 420 964
Capital expenditure and financial Investment
Purchases of Investments (s8,627) (75.075)
Disposals of investments 63,391 65,885
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from capial expenditure and financial investment 4,764 (5,190)
Dividends
Equity dividends paid (3.754) (1,714)
Net cash inflow/(outflaw) before financing L 1,430 (9.940)
Financing i
Purchase of shares for treasury i (1,225) (924}
Increase In 1ssued share capital ! - 8,886
Expenses on share 1ssue and buybacks (21) (461)
Net cash (outflow)/infiow from financing (1,246} 7.501
Increase/(decrease) In cash in the year 184 (2,439)
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net cash
Increase/(decrease) in cash 184 (2.439)
¢pening cash position 1,684 4,123
Closing cash pesition 15 1,868 1,684

The accompanytng notes are an integral part of this statement




Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policles

(a) Basts of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared under UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (YUK GAAP™} and 1n accordance
with the Statement of Recommended Practice (“SORP”) for
imvestment trust compames and venture capital trusts issued by
the Assaciation of Investment Compares ("AIC") in Januaiv 2009
and on the assumption that the Company maintains VCT status

The Company 15 no longer an investment Company as defined by
Seclion 833 of the Companies Act 2006 as investment Company
status was revoked on 10 March 2003 in order to permit the
distribution of capital profits

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Presenttation of the Income Statement

In order to better reflect the activities of a VCT and in accordance
with the SORE supplementary infotmation which analvses the
\ncome statement between items of a revenue and capital nature
has been presented alongside the income statement Net Revenue
1» the measure the Directors believe appropriate in assessing the
Company's comphance with certain requiremnents set out in
Section 274 of the Income Tax Act 2007

(b) valuation of investments

Purchases or sales of investments are recogrused at the date
of transaction

Investments are valued at fair value For AIM traded and listed
securities this 1s either bid price or the last traded price, depending
on the convention of the exchange on which the investment s
quoted

In respect of unquoted investments, these are fair valued by

the Directors using methodology which 1s consistenl with the
International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation
{“IPEV") guidelines This means investments are valued using

an carnings mulbiple which has a discount or premium applied
which adjusts for points of difference to appropnate stock market
or comparable transaction multiples Alternative methods of
valuation will include apphcation of an arm’s length thurd party
valuation, a provision on cost or a net assel value basis

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
investments are included 0 the Income Statement for the period
as a capital item Transaction costs on acquisition are included
within the imtial recogmtion and the profit or loss on disposal 1s
calculated net of transaction costs on disposal

{¢) Income

Interest income on loan stuck and dividends on preference shares
are accrued on a daily basis Provision 1> made against thas
income where recovety 15 doubtful Where the terms of unquoted
loan stocks only require interest or a redemption premum to

be pad on redemphion, the interest and redemption premium

1s recogmsed as income once redemption 1s reasonably certain
Until such date interest 1s accrued daily and included within the
valuation of the investment

Income from fixed interest secunities and deposit interest 1s
included on an effective interest rate basts

Dividends on quoted shares are recogmsed as income on the date
that the related investments are matked ex dividend and where
no dividend date 1s quoted, when the Company s right to receive
payment 15 established

(d) Expenses

All expenses are recorded on an accruals basis

(e) Revenue/fcapital

1he revenue column of the income statement includes all income
and expenses The capital column accounts for the reahised and
unrealised profit and loss on investments and the proportion of
management fee charged to capital

(f) Issue costs

Issue costs are deducted from the share premium account

(g) Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is recogmised 1n respect of atl iming differences
that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheetl date
where transactions or events thal result in an obligation to pay
more, or the night to pay less, tax n future have occurred at

the balance sheet date This 1s subject to deferred lax assets only
beng recogmsed 1f it 15 considered more likely than not that there
will be switable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted Timing differences
are differences arising between the Company*s taxable profits and
115 results as stated 1n Lhe linanaal statements which are capable
of reversal in one or more subsequent periods

(h) Capital reserves
(1} Capital Reserve

Gatns and losses on reahisation of investments of a capital
nature are dealt with in this reserve Purchase of the
Company's own shares to be either held in treasury or
cancelled are also funded from this reserve 735 per cent
of management fees are allocated to the captal reserve in
accordance with the Board's expected split between fong
term imncome and capital returns

(v} Revaluation Reserve

Changes n lair value of investments, are dealt with in
this reserve

i3



34

Notes to the Accounts

2 Income
I
100 2009
E'ooc [ oo
tncome from investmentst
UK franked 290 208
UK unfranked 1,413 Bo6
UK unfranked - reinvested 201 -
Redemption premium 310 78
2,214 1,182
Other incomes
Interest 4 115
Total income 2,218 1,297
Total Income comprises
Dividends 291 208
Interest 1927 1,089
| .18 1,297
Income from investments
AIM traded & listed secuntes 319 453
Unquoted secunues 1,895 729
2,214 1,182

1Al (nvestments have been designated fair value through profit or loss on imitial recognition, therefore all investment inceme anses on (nvestments at fair
value through profit or loss

+0ther income on financial assets not designated far value through prafit or loss

3 Recoverable VAT

HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC} confirmed 1n October 2007, following the Luropean Court of Justice deuision in the JP Morgan
Claverhouse case, that the provision of management services Lo investment trusts 1s exempt from VAT Accordingly 1518 TP LLP ceased
to charge VAT on management fees payable by the Company with effect from 30 June 2008

During the year no VAT (2009 £367,000} has been recovered In the prior year the recovered VAT was recognised as a separate itemn
the income statement allocated between revenue and capital return in the same proporbion as that in which the srrecoverable VAT was
ongmally charged Interest relating to the VAT claim amounting to £93,000 1n the ycar to 30 Septamber 2009 was also recogmised 1n

the period




Notes to the Accounts

4 Investment management fee

@Q 2009

£’000 E ooo

Investment management fee 1,214 1,163
performance fee - -
1,214 1,163

For the purposes of the revenue and capital celumns in the income statement, the management fee (including VAT) has been allocated
25 per cent to revenue and 75 per cent to capital, in fine with the Board’s expected long term return in the form of income and capital
gans respectively from the Company ‘s investment portfolio

The management agreement may be terrminated by either party giving twelve months notice of termination The Manager 1515 EP TR
receives a fee of 2 per cent per annum of the net assets of the Company, calculated and payable on a quarterly basis

Lhe Manager 1s enlitled to a performance fee 1if al the end of any calculation penod, the total return on shareholders’ Tunds exceeds the
threshold of UK base rate plus 2 per cent on shareholders’ funds {calculated on & compound basis) The Manager 1s entitled to 10 per
cent of the excess The amount of any performance fee which 1s paid in respect of a calculation pertod shall be capped at 5 per cent of
shareholders’ funds at the end of the pertod

In addition, the Manager receives an annuai sccretarial and accounting fee of £36,380 (inked to the movermnent 1n the UK Retail Price
Index (“RPI")), subject to annual review, plus a vanable fee of O 125 per cent of the net assets of the Company which exceed £5 mlhon
The annual secretarial and accounting fee 15 subject to a maximum of £105,634 per annum (Imked to the movement n RPT) subject to
annual review It 15 chargeable 100 per cent to revenue

Amounts payable to the Manager at the year end are disclosed in note 11

5 Other expenses

010 2009

| f 000 £ coo

Directors’ fees N 63

secretarial and accounting fees 10 108
rRemuneration of the auditors and their associates

- audit 20 22

- other services supphed pursuant to legislanon {intenm review) [ 5

- other services supplied relating to taxation 5 5

Other 149 202

360 405

The Chairman recerved £23,500 per annum (2009 £21,000) Lach of the other Directors received £15,500 per annum (2009 £14,000)

The Audit Committee reviews the nature and extent af non-audit services to ensure that independence 1s maintained The Directors
consider that the auditors were best placed to provide such services

All figures include irrecoverable VAT, where apphcable 1he Company is not registered for VA]
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Notes to the Accounts

6 Tax on ordinary activities

6a Analysis of charge for the year

zaio 2069
o000 { ooo
UK corporaton tax - -
1he income statement shows the tax charge allucated between revenue and capitat
6b Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax charge for the year 15 lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK for a company The differences are
explained below
2010 2009
Revenue Capital Tetal Revenue Capual Totak
Eo00 £’000 E'ono £ 000 t'o00 [ ooo
profit/(loss) on ordinary achivities before tax 1,554 5,889 7.443 669 {384) 28¢
Corporation tax at 28% 435 1,649 2,084 187 (108) 70
Effect of
Non taxable dividend income (81) - (81) {58) - (58}
Non taxable gains - (1,504) (1,904) - (53) (s3)
Losses {utilised)/carned forward - (99} (92 - 32 32
Marginal tax relief - - - (s 9 -
Tax chargef{credit) for the year (note 6a) 354 (354) - 120 (120) -

Al 30 September 2010 the Company had surplus management expenses of £1,268 823 (30 September 2009 £1,630,459) which have

not been recogmsed as a deferred fax asset Thus 1s because the Company 1s not evpected to generate laxable inco
un excess of the deductible expenses of that [uture peried and, accordingly, the Company 1y unlikely to be able to reduce future Lax
habihties through the use of existing surplus expenses Due to the Company’s stalus as

me i a future poriod

a VCT, and the intention to conlinue mecting

the conditions required ta obtan approval i the foreseeable Juture the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gans
and lusses arising on the revalualion or disposal of investments

7 Dividends
2010 7009
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capnal Total
£’000 f’ooo £’oo0 f coo f oco f 000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity
holders in the year
For the year ended 30 September 2010
- first intenm dwaidend of 2 5p per ordinary share
paid on 7 june 2010 338 1,354 1,692 - - -
Amounts recognised as distnbutions te equity
holders in the year
For the year ended 30 September 2009
- First intenim dividend of 2 5p per ordinary share
paid on 26 June 2009 - - - 3144 1,370 1,714
- Finat dividend of 3 op per ordinary share
paid on 30 December 2009 138 1,924 2,062 - - -
476 3,278 3,754 344 1,370 1,714
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Notes to the Accounts

8 Returns per share

The 10 9op return per orcinary share (2009 ( 43p) s based on the net profit from ordinary activities after tax of £7,443,000 (2009
£285,000) and on 67,917,384 ordinary shares (2009 65.802,901), being the weighted average number of shares inissue during the
year

9 Investments

All investments are designated fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition, therefore all gains and losses arise on investments
designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Reporting Standard 29 ‘Finanaal Instruments [hsclosures’ (the Standard) requires an analvsis of nvestments valued at far
value based on the rehabihtv and significance of the infor mation used to measure thewr fawr value The level 1s determined by the fowest
(that 15 the least teliable or independently observable) level of input that 1s sigmificant to the farr value measurement for the individuat
investment inats entirety as follows

® Level 1 — investment prices quoted n an active market
o Tevel 2 — investments whose fair value 15 based directly on observable current market prices or ndirectly being derwed from
market prices

® Level 3 — investments whose [air value 1s determined using a valuation Lechmque based on assurnptions that are not supported by
abservable current market prices or based on cbservable market data

] 010 2009
| f'coo £ soo
Level 1
Interest bearing securties 14,994 18,512
tnvestments traded on AIM | 12,8 11630
Investments hsted on LSE 1,007 1019
Investment traded on NYSE 150 212
Investment traded on PLUS 136 109
29,078 31,782
tevel 2
Collective 1nvestment veticle (Wood Street Microcap (nvestment Fund) 1,654 525
Level 3
Unquoted investments | 3007 27,222
| 6,739 59,529
i
L R
} 2010 2009
| £'000 f oeo
Equity shares 25,696 21,724
Loan notes 20,994 19 196
Preference shares 55 97
Fixed income secunties 14,994 18,512
61,739 59,529
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Notes to the Accounts

g Investments {continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Interest Collective
bearing Traded Listed Traded Traded investiment
securities on AIM on LSE an NYSE on PLUS vehicle Unquoted Total
E’o00 £'o00 £'o00 £'oo0 £'000 E'o00 E'o00 000
Opening book cost 18,538 17,086 578 180 5G0 525 20,553 57,960
Opening unrealised {deprecianon)/appreciation (26) (5,156) 441 32 (391) - 6,669 1,569
Cpening vatuation 18,512 11,530 1,019 212 109 [¥11 7,112 59,529
Movements 1n the year
Purchases at cost 51,710 2,132 433 - - 1,000 3,797 59,072
sales - proceeds (55,214 {2,585) - (29) - - (5.433) ]  (63,661)
- realised (losses}/gains on sales (1a) 578 - 2 - - 1,305 1875
Unrealised {losses)/gains realised dunng the year (26) (1,406) - 4 - - 2,543 1118
increase/(decrease) i unrealised appreciation 26 2532 (435} (39) 27 129 ¥ 569 3,809
Closing valuanion 14,994 12,781 1,017 150 136 1,654 31,007 61,739
Closing book cost 14,954 15,405 1,01 157 500 1625 22,769 56,361
Closing unrealised (depreciation)fapgreciation - (2,624) 6 6)] (364) 129 8,238 5,378
14,994 12,781 1,017 150 136 1,654 31,007 61,739

During the year the Company incurred brokerage costs on sales and purchases of £7,500 (2009 £5,338)
The gains and losses included 1n the above table have all been recogrised 1n the Income Statement on page 30

The Standard requires disclosure by class of financial instruments, if the effect of changing one or mare mputs to reasonably possible
alternative assumptions would result 1n a sigmficant change to the fan value measurement The mformation used in deternmnation
of the fair value of Level 3 investments 1s chosen with reference to the speafic underlying arcumstances and position of the investee
company The portfolio has been reviewed and both downside and upsile reasonable possible alternatives have been dentified and
applied to the valuation of each of the unquoted investments The nputs flexed in determuning the reasonahbly possible alternative
assumptions include the earmngs stream and marhetabihty discount Applying the downside alternatives the value of the unquoted
investments would be £2 6 milhon or 8 3 per cent lower Using the upside alternative the value would be increased by £3 0 milhon or

9 6 per cent
10 Debtors
2010 009
£ro00 L'neo
Prepayments and accrued income 307 283
Amounts due from escrow 172 -
amounts due from brokers - 2N
479 554
11 Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)
‘ 1010 2009
£ 000 £ 000
Management and secretanal and accounung fees due to the Manager 348 336
Amounts due to brokers - 125
Other creditors 65 91
13 552
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12 Called-up share capital

The Comparues Act 2006 abolished the requirement for a company to have an authorised share capital and at the Company's last
Annual General Meeting, the Company’s Articles of Association were amended to reflect this Whlst the Company no longer has
authorised share capital, the Directors will still be limited as to the number of shares they can at any time allot as the Companies Act
2006 requires that Directors seek authority from the shareholders for the allolment ol new shares

Allotted, called-up and fully paid

Ordinary Shares £ 000
74,730,154 ordanary shares of 10p each listed at 30 September 2009 7.473
74.730,194 ordinary shares of 1op each listed at 30 September 2010 7.473
5,993,906 ordinary shares of 10p each held n treasury at 30 September 2009 (599)
1,560,000 ordenary shares of 10p each repurchased during the year and held in treasury (156)
2,553,506 ordinary shares of 10p each held in treasury at 30 September 2010 (755)
67,176,288 ordinary shares of 10p each n circulation at 30 September 2010 6,718

As at 18 November 2010 the Company *s 1ssued share capital was 74,730,194 ordinary shares, of which 7,553,906 shares were held i
treasury The number of shares in airculation was 67,176,288 ordinary shares carrving one vote each

Treasury shares

Lhe Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 came into force on 1 December 2003 and allowed the
Company to held shares acquured by way of market purchase as treasury shares, rather than having to cancel them Shareholders
have previously approved a resolution permitting the Company to 1ssue shares from treasury at a discount to the prevaniing NAV f
the Board considers it in the best interests of the Company to do so However treasury shares will not be sold at a discount wider than
the discount prevailing at the time the shares were imtially bought hack by the Company It 15 the Beard's intention only to use the
mechamism of re-issuing treasury shares when demand for the Company’s shares 15 greater than the supply available 1n the market
place Such issues would be captured under the terms of the Prospectus Dircctive and subject to the annual cap of Euroc 2 5 mllion on
funds raised before requiring a full prospectus, although they would not be considered bv HM Revenue & Customs to be new shares
entithng the purchaser to imtial income tax relief, and therefore shares are unlikely to be 1ssued from treasury in the same year as a

“top up” offer for subscription
The Company does not have any externally imposed capital requirements

Where shares are bought back but not cancelled Lhe share capital remains unchanged The NAV 15 cakulated by using the number of
shares 1n 1ssue less those bought back and held in treasury
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13 Reserves
Caphtal
Share redempuion Capital Revaluation Revenue
premlun\ reserve reserve reserve eseive

£ oo f ooo f 0oo £ oco £ ooo
At 1 October 2009 12,573 9,254 29,665 1,565 681
Purchase of shares for treasury - - (1,225) - -
Expenses on share 1ssue and buybacks - - (6} - -
Reallocation of prior year unrealised gains - - 1,115 (1,1135) -
Realised on disposal of investments - - 1,875 - -
Net increase in value of investments - - - 4,924 -
Management fee capialised net of associated tax - - (310} - -
Revenue return on ordinary activiies after tax - - - - 1,200
Dividends paid i the year - - (3.278) - (476}
vaxation relief from capital expenses - - 354 - -
At 30 September 2010 12,573 9,254 17,590 5378 1,405

Al 30 September 2010, reserves distribulable by way of dividend amounted 1o £26,006,000 (2009 £25,246,000) comprising the capital
reserve, revenue reserve and the net unrealised loss on those level one investments whose prices are quoted i an aclive may ket and

deemed readily realisable in cash

14 Net asset value per share

The net asset value per share and the net asset values attnibutable to the ordinary shares at the year end are calculated in accordance
with their entitlements in the Articles of Association and were as follows

Number of shares

Net assel value

per share aturbutable

Nel assel value atinbutable

0 2009 00 2009 2010 2009

number number pence pence £ro00 £ co0

ordinary shares (basic) 67,176,288 68,736,288 94 79 89 06 63,673 61,215
Ordinary shares (treasury} 74,730,194 93.42 88 13 69,811 65,861

74,730,194 ]

Basic net asset value per share 1s based on net assets at the year end, and on 67,176,288 (2009 68,736,288) ordinary shares, being the
respective number of shares i1 airculation at the year end

The treasury net asset value per share as at 30 September 2010 included ordinary shares held in treasury valued at the mid share price

of 81 25p at 30 September 2010

15 Analysis of changes In cash

00 2009

£'000 f ooo

Beginning of year 1,684 4,123
Net cash inflow/(outfiow)} 184 (z.439)
1,868 1,684

As at 30 September 2010
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16 Reconcillation of profit on ordinary activities before taxation to net cash inflow from operating activities

: 2010 2009

! £'o00 { ooo
Profit on ordinary activities befare taxation i 7.443 285
Gains on Investments (6.799) (+89)
(Increase)/decrease In debtors (24) 870
increase/(decrease) in creditors 1 {2)
Income reinvested (201 -
Net cash inflow from cperanng activities 420 964

17 Contingencies, guarantees and financlal commitments

There were no contingencies, guarantees or finanaial commitments of the Company as at 30 September 2010 (30 September 2009 ml)

18 Significant Interests

[
|
There are no inlerests of 20 per cent or more of anv class of share capila) ‘

Further information on the sigmficant interests is disclosed on pages 14 and 15

19 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Company's finanaial instruments comprise equity and fixed interest investments, cash balances and hquid resources The Company
holds finanaial assets in accordance with 1ts investment policy Lo invest in a diverse portfolio of established and profitable UK unguoted

companies and companies raising new share capital on AIM

Fixed asset investments held (see note 9) are valued at fair value Tor quoted securities this 1» either nd price or the last traded price,
depending on the convention of the exchange on which the investment 1s quoted In respect of unquoted investments, Lhese are
fair valued by the Directors {using rules consistent with IPEV guidelines) The fair value of all other financial assets and habihties 1s

represented by their carrying value in the Balance sheet

The Company's investing activities expose 1t to various types of risk that are associated with financial instruments and markets in
which it invests The most impertant types of finanaal rish to which the Company 1+ exposed are market risk credit risk and hquichty
sk The nature and extent of the financial nstruments held at the balance sheet date and the nsk management pohicies emploved by

the Company are discussed in notes 20 to 23
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20 Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gains and includes interest rate risk and price risk

The Company's strategy on the management of investment r1sk 15 driven by the Company’s investment objective as outhined in note
19 The management of market risk ts part of the mvestment management process and 1s typical of private equity investment The
portfole 1s managed 1in accordance with policies and procedures 1n place as described in more detail i the Reporl of the Mirectors

on pages 19 to 24, with an awareness of Lhe effects ol adverse price movements through detasled and continuing andlysis, with an
ohyective of maximising overall returns to shareholders Investments in unguoted stacks and AIM traded companies, by their nature,
involve a hugher degree of risk than investments in the mamn market Some of that risk can be mitigated by diversilying the portfoho
across business sectors and asset classes 1he Company’s overall market positions are mornitored by the Board on a quarterly basis

Details of the Company s tnvestment portfolio at the balance sheel date are disclosed in the schedule of investments sel out on pages 14
and 15 An analysis of mvestments betwecn debt and equily instruments is disclosed in note 9

23 per wnt (2009 22 per cent) of the Company's investments are listed on the Lendon or New York Stock Exchange or traded on
AIM or PLUS A 5 per cent increase in stock prices as at 30 September 2010 would have increased the net assets attributable to the
Company's shareholders and the total profit for the year by £704,000 (2009 £664,000), an equal change in the opposite direction
would have decreased the net assets attributable to the Company’s shareholders and the total profit for the year by an equal amount

49 per cent (2009 44 per cent) of the Company's investments are in unquoted companies held at fair value Valuation methodelogy
wncludes the application of earmngs multiples derived from either listed companies with similar characterstics or recent comparable
transactions Therefore the value ol the unquoted element of the portfolio may also be indirectly affected by price movemenls on the
listed exchanges A 5 per cent mcrease in the valuations of unquoted nvestments at 30 September 2010 would have increased the net
assets attributable to the Company ‘s shareholders and the total profit for Lhe year by £1,550,000 (2009 £1,361,000), an equal change
1n the opposile direction would have decreased the net assets attributable lo the Company's shareholders and the total profit for the
year by an equal amount
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21 Interest rate risk

At 30 september 2010 £3,194,000 (2009 £11,512,000) fixed rate secunties were held by the Company As a resull, the Company s
subject to exposure to Far value interest rate risk due to fluctuations n the prevailing levels of market interest rates

At 30 September 2010 £20,994,000 (2009 £19,196,000) fixed rate loan notes were held by the Company The weighted average
effective interest rate for the loan note secunlics 1s 10 87 per cent as at 30 September 2010 (2009 8 79 per cenl) Due lo the complexaty
of the nstruments and uncertainty surrounding timing of redemplion the weighted average time for which the rate 15 fixed has not

been calculated

The table below summanses weighted average effective interest rates for the fixed interest-bearing financial instruments

Flxed rate
2010 2000
Weighted weighted
Total weighted average Total Wesghted average
fixed average time for fixed average ume for
rate Interest which rate rate interast which rate
portfolic rate Is fixed portfolle rate 15 fixed
£'oo0 % days f 000 % days
Fixed rate
Fixed interest securities 3,194 51 57 11,512 102 31

Floating rate

When the Company retains cash balances, the majonty of cash 1s ordinanly held on interest bearing deposil accounts and, where

appropriate, within an interest bearing money market open ended investment company (
determines the interest payments recerved on interest bearing cash balances 15 the bank base rate which was 0 5

September 2010 (2009 0 5 per cenl)

“QOEIC”) The benchmark rate which
per cent as at 30

2010 2009
! £'000 L o00
3
Floating rate
QEIC 11,800 7,000
1,868 1,684

Cash at bank and on deposit
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22 Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the sk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will tail to discharge an obligation or commutment that st has

entered into with the Company The Investment Manager has in place a montoring procedure in respect of counterparty risk which i

reviewed on an ongong basis The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the balance

sheet date )

At the reporting date, the Company ‘s finanual assets exposed to credit fisk amounted to the following

00 2005
foo0 £ coo
tnvestments in floating rate instruments I 11,800 7,000
Investments in fixed rate instruments 3,194 11,512
Cash at bank and on deposit 1,868 1,684
Interest, dividends and other receivables 479 283 ‘
|
17,341 20,479 !

Credit risk amsing on fixed interest nstruments 1s rmitigated by investing in UK Government Stock

Credit nisk arising on floating rate instruments 1s mtigated by investing 1n monev market open ended investment companies managed
by BlackRock and JP Morgan Chase ("JPM') Credit rish on unquoted loan stock held within unlisted imvestments 1s considered to be
part of market risk as disclosed 1n note 20

Credil risk ansing on transactions with brokers relates te transactions awaiting settlement Risk relaling to unsettled transactions s
considered to be small due to the short settlement period nvolved and the high credit quality of the brokers used The Board moniors |
the quality of service provided by the brokers used to further mitigate this risk |

All assets of the Company which are traded on a recogmsed exchange are held by JPM, the Company’s custochan The Board monitors
the Company’s nsk by reviewing the custodian’s internal controls reports as described 1n the Corporate Governance section on pages 25

and 26

Substantially ali of the cash held by the Company 1s held by JPM The Board momtors the Company’s risk by reviewing regularly
TPM’s mternal controls reparts as previously described Should the credit quality or the finanaal position of FPM deteriorate
sigmficantly the Investment Manager will seek to move the cash heldings to another bank

There were no significant concentrations of credht nisk to counterparties at 30 September 2010 or 30 September 2009 No individual
investment exceeded 11 0 per cenl of the net assets attributable to the Company’s shareholders at 30 September 2010 (2009 11 5 per cent)

23 Liquldity nsk

The Company’s financial instruments include investments 1n unquoted companies which are not traded in an argamsed public
market as well as AIM traded equity investments both of which generally may be ilhiquid As a result, the Company may not be able
to hquidate quickly some of its mvestments i these mstruments at an amount close to their fair value in order to meet its hquidity
requirements, ot to respond to speaific events such as deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particutar 15suer

The Company’s liquidity nisk 1s managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with policies and procedures as
described 1n the Report of the Directors on page 20 The Company 's overall hquidity risks are monitored on a quarterly basis by

the Board

T'he Company mantatns sufficient investments in cash and readily realisable secunities to pay accounts payable and accrued expenses
At 30 September 2010 these investments were valued at £16,862,000 (2009 £20,196,000}

24 Related parties

Related party transactions include Management, Secretanal, Accounting and Performance fees payable to the Manager, I5I5 EP LLP as
disclosed 1n notes 4, 5 and 11, and fees paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 5 In addition, the Manager operates a Co~investment
Scheme, detasled in the Report of the Directors on page 22, whereby employees of the Manager are entitled to participate i certamn
unguoted investments alongside the Company



Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 15 hereby given that the thurteenth Annual General Meeting of Baronsmead VCT 2 plc (“‘the Company '’} will be
held at the London Stock Exchange, 10 Paternoster Square, London EC4M 7LS, on Tuesday, 11 January 2011 at 1 30 pm
for the purposes of considering and, 1f thought fit, passing the following resolutions, resolutions 1 to 7 being proposed
as ordinary resolutions and resolutions § to 12 as special resolutions

Ordinary Business

1 To receve the Report and Nnancial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2010
To declare a final dividend of 3 Op per ordinary share

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 September 2010
To re-elect Mrs G Nott as a director

To re-elect Mr C A Parntt as a director

[+ R B L T

To re-appomnt KPMG Audit Plc as the independent auditors and te authorise the directors to determune thewr remuneration

Special Business

7 THAT m substitution for all subsisting authorities to the extent unused, the directors be and are hereby generally
and unconditienally authorised in accordance with section 551 of the Compames Act 2006 (the “Act’”), to exercise
all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company and to grant nghts to subscribe for or to convert any
secunty into shares in the Company (“Rights”) up to an aggregate normnat amount of £2,238,985 during the penod
commencing on the passing of this resolution and expiring on the fifth anmversary of the date of the passing of
this resolution (unless previously revoked, varied, renewed or extended by the Company 1in general meeting), but so
that this authonty shall allow the Company to make before the expiry of this authority offers or agreements which
would or might require shares to be allotted or Rights to be granted after such expiry

8 THAT, subject to the passing of resolution 7 set out in the notice of this meeting, the directors be and are hercby
empowered, pursuant to sections 570 and 573 of the Act to allot equity secunities as defined 1n section 560 of the At
for cash pursuant to the authonty given pursuant to resolution 7 set out 1n the notiwe of this meeting, or bv way of
a sale of treasury shares, as iIf section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power
shall be hmited to

{a) the allotment of equity securities up to an aggregate nomnal amount of £2,238,985 pursuant to one or more offers
for subscription,

(b) the allotment of equuty securities up to an aggregate nominal amount representing 10 per cent of the issued share
capital (including treasury shares) from time to time which may be at a discount to NAV pursuant to any drvidend
remvestment scheme operated by the Company, and

the allotment of equity securities (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above) up to an aggregate
norminal amount representing 10 per cent of the 1ssued share capital (including treasury shares) from time to tume
which may be at a discount to NAV and 1n each case where such proceeds of 1ssue may be used to purchase shares
n the Company and the power conferred by this resolution shall expire on the date faling 15 months atter the

date of the passing of this resolution (unless previously revoked, varied, renewed or extended by the Company in
general meeting) or, if earher, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held 1n 2012,
except that the Company may, betore such expiry, make otfers or agreements which would or might require equity
securities to be allotted atter such expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot equity securities pursuant to any
such offers or agreements as 1f the power conferred by this resolution had not expired

(c

—_—

LH
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9 THAT the Company be and hereby 1s empowered to make marhet purchases withun the meanming of section 693i4) of
the Act of ordiary shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company (“Ordinary Shares”) provided that

{a) the aggregate number of Ordinary Shares which may be purchased shall not exceed 10,069,725 or, if lower,
such number of Ordinary Shares as shall equal 14 99 per cent of the 1ssued Ordmary Shares as at the date of
such purchase (excluding any Ordinary Shares held i treasury),

(b) the mumumum price which may be paxd for an Ordinary Share 1s the nominal value thereof of 10 punce,

(c) the maxamum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share 15 an amount equal to the higher of (1) 105
per cent of the average of the middle market quotation for an Ordinary Share tahen from the London Stock
Exchange daily official list for the five business days unmediately preceding the day on which such Ordinary
Share 1s to be purchased, and (1) the amount stipulated by Article 5(1) of the Buyback and Stabihisation
Regulation 2003,

(d) the authonty conferred by this resolution shall expire on the date falling 15 months after the date of the passing
of this resolution or, if earher, the conclusion of the annual general meeting to be held in 2012, unless such
authority 1s renewed prior to such time, and

{e) the Company may make a contract to purchase Ordinary Shares under the authonty conferred by this
resolution prior to the expiry of such authonty which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the
expiration of such authonty and may make a purchase of such Ordmary Shares

10 THAT a general meeting {other than an annual general meeting) may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice,
provided that this authonty shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

11 THAT the amount standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company, at the date an order 1s made
confirming such cancellation by the court, be and hereby 1s cancelled

12 TIIAT the amount standing to the credit of the capital redemption reserve of the Company, at the date an order 1s made
confirming such cancellation by the court, be and hereby 1s cancelled

By Order of the Board

ISIS EP LLP

Secretary

100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN

19 November 2010
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11

12

No Director has a service contract with the Company

To be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting (and for the purposes of the determination by the Company of the votes they may cast), Members
must be registered in the Regaster of Members of the Company at 1 30 pm an 9 January 2011 (or n the event of any adjournment 48 hours before
the ime of the adjourned meeting) Changes to the Register of Members of the Company alter the 1elevant deadline shall be chsregarded 1n determining
the nghts of any person to attend and vote at the meeting

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 15 entitled to appoint a proxy or proXies to attend speak and vote on tus or her behalf

A proxy need not also be a member, but must attend Lhe meeting to represent you Details of how to appeint the Chatrman of the meeting or another
person as your proxy using the proxy form are set out in the notes to the proxy form [f you wish your proxy o speak on your behalf at the meeting
vou will need to appoint your own choice of proay (not the Chairmany and give your instructions directly to them

To appoint more than one proxy, an additional proxy form(s) may be obtained by contacting the Company » registrars Computershare [nvestor
Services PLC, helphine on 0870 703 0137 or you may photocopy the proxy torm Please indicate in the box next to the proxy holder 3 name

the number of shares in relatien to which they are authonsed to act as your proxy Please also indicate by ticking the box prowvided, 1f the prox
mstruction 1s one of multiple instructions bung given All forms must be signud and should be returned together i the same cnvelop

A reply paid form of proxy 15 enclosed with shareholders copies of this document To be vahid 1t should be lodged with the Company ‘s registrars
Computershare Investor Services PLC The Pavibions, Bnidgwater Road Bnstol BS99 627 s0 as to be recaived not later than 48 hours befare the time
appointed for the meeting or any adjourned meeting or, in the case of a poll taken subsequent to the date of the meeting or adjourned mecting seras to
be received no later than 24 hours beford the time apponted for taking the poll

A person authorised by a corporation 1s entitled to excruise (on behalf of the corporation) the same powers as the corporation could exercise it

were an indvidual member of the Company On a vote on a resolution on a show of hands each authorised person has the same voting rights as the
corporatian would be entitled to On a voteon a resolution an a poll, if more than one authorised person purports to exerf1se a power 1n respect of the
same share

(a) If they purport to exercise the power in the same way as cach other the power 15 treated as exercised 1n that way or

(b)  If they do not purport to exercise the power 1n the same way as each other the power 1s treated as not exercised

Any person receiving a copy of this Notice as a person nominated by a member Lo emyoy nformation rights undur section 146 of the Companes Act
2006 (a Nominated Person ) should note that the provisions in Notes 3 and 4 above concerming the appointment of a proxy or proxics to attend the
meeting in place of a member, do not apply to a Nemunated Person as only Sharcholders have the nght to appomt a proxy However a Nominated
Person may have a right under an agreement between the Nonmnated Person and the member by wiom he or she was nominated to be appointed, or
to have someone clse appointed, as a proxy for the meetng if a Nomumated Person has ne such proxy appomtment right or does not wish to exeraise
1t, he/she may have a right under such an agreement to give nstructions Lo the member as to the excrase of voting rights al the meeting

Nominated persons shouid also remember that their mam pont of contact in terms of ther investment 1n the Company remains the member who
nomimnated the Nominated Person to eryoy information nghts tor perhiaps the custodian or broher wheo admmsters the investment on thur behalf)
Nominated Persons should continue to contact that member custodian or broker (and not the Company) regarding anv changes or quuries relating to
the Nominated Person s personal details and interest in the Company (induding any admimstrative matter) The only exception to ths 19 where the
Company expressly requests a response lrom a Namnated Person

Appamtment of a proay will not preclude a member from subsuquently attending and voting al the meeting should the member subscquently

decide to do so A member can only appount a proxy using the procedures set out 1n these notes and thy notes to the proxy card The termunation of
the authenty of a person Lo adt as a proay must be notificd Lo the Company in wrting Amended instructions must be recaved by Computershard
Investor Services PLC by the deadline for receipt of provies

Should a member wish to appoint a proxy clectromically such proxy appeintment must be registerad electromeally at www eproxyappoimntment

com so as to be recaived not later than 48 heurs before the ime appointed for the meeting or any adjourned mecking or, tn the case of a poll taken
subseguent to the date of the meeting or adjourncd meeting, so as to be recaved no later than 24 hours before thy Lime appeinted to take the poll To
vote etectromeally you will be asked to provide the Control Number, Shareholder Reference Number (SRN) and PIN, detanls of whuch are contained in
the personahsed proxy card enclosed This 1s the only acceptable means by which proxy instructions mav be submtted electromcally

As at 18 Novermber 2010 the Company s 1ssued share capital consists of 74,730,194 Ordinary Shares of which 7,653,900 are held i Treasury The
total number of voting nghts m the Company 15 67,176 288

A copy of the Notice of Annual General Meeting and the informahion required by Section 311A Companies Act 2006 is included on the Company's
website www baronsmeadyetd, co uk

Section 319A of the Compames Act 2006 requires the directors to answer any question rascd at the AGM which, relates to the busingss of the meding
although no answer need be given (a) if o do so would interfere unduly with the preparation of the meeting or involve distlosure of confidential
information {b) if the answer has already been given on the Company s website or {c} 1if 1t 15 undesirable in the best nterests of the Company or the
good order of the mweting

Members satisfying the thresholds in sechion 527 of the Companies Act 2006 can require the Company to publsh a statemunt on its website setting
out any matter relating to (2} the audit of the Company 5 accounts (including the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be lanl
before the Annual General Meeting, or (b} anyv arcumstances cannected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold oftice since the last Annuai
General Meeting, that the members propose to raise at the mceting The Company cannot require the members requesting the publication to pay

Its expenses, Any slatement required to be placed on the website must also be sent to the Company s auditors no later than the ume 1l makes its
statement avaitable on the wibsite The business which may b dealt with at the mecting ncludes any statument that the Campany has beun requirad
to publish on 1ts website

By attending the meeting, members and thar proxies and represcntatives are understoad by the Company to have agreed Lo receive any
cormmumcations relating to the Company s shares made at the meeting

437
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Shareholder Information and Contact Details

Shareholder communication
The Board has a policy of regular and open commurnication with shareholders based around quarterly statutory reporting

Electromic communication has been mtroduced following new legislation in the 2006 Companies Act and the Baronsmead
VCT 2 website 15 available at www baronsmeadvet2 co uk

Shareholder Helpline
Tel 0870 703 0137 {Calls charged al geographic and natiemal rates)

The Shareholder Helpline is available on UK business days between Monday and friday, 8 30 am to 5 pm The helpline
contans automated self-service functionality which 1s available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week Using your Shareholder
Reference Number which 1s available on your share certificate or dividend tax voucher, our self-service functionality will

let you do the following things

Automated Functions

— confirm the latest share price

- confirm your current share helding balance

— confirm payment history

— order a change ot address, dividend bank mandate or stock transfer form

e-mail web quenes@computershare co uk

Enquiries
Shareholders should contact the following regarding fqueries

Basic contact details, 1¢ change of address, joiming the DRIP, queries re share and tay certificates and bank mandate forms

Computershare (Company Registrar)
wwwv-uk computershare com/mvestar

Investors who hold ordinary shares in their own name can chech their holdings on our Registrar’s website
www-uk computershare com Please note that to access this faaihty investors will need to quote the reference number

shown on thewr share certificate

Alternatively, by registering for the Investors’ Centre facility on Computershare’s website, investors can view details of all
their holdings for which Computershare 15 Registrar, as well as access additional facihities and documentation Please see

www Investorcentre co uk for further information

For comparative performance data of Barensmead V(T 2 and other generalist VCTs please visit the AIC performance

statistics page at www theaic co uk/statistics-pubhications/

For information on asset allocations, dividend policies, nvestment process, DRIP mechamsm, share price movements, the

share price discount and selhng shares

ISIS LP LLP (the Investment Manager} at www 1S1sep com

e-mail rmuchael probin@isisep com, margaret barfl@:sisep com

Tel Michael Probin 020 7506 5796, Margaret Barff 020 7506 5630

The Baronsmead website (www baronsmeadvcts co uk) hinks to helpful sites, contains detaus of the team and some case

studies of investments




Shareholder Information and Contact Details

Share Price

The Company’s ordinary shares are histed on the London Stock Exchange The mud-price of the Company’s ordinary
shares 15 given daily in the Financtal Times in the Investment Companies section of the London Share Service Share price
information can also be obtaned from the ink on the company ‘s website and many financial websites

Trading Shares

The Company’s shares can be bought and sold in the same way as any other quoted company on the London Stock

Exchange through a stockbroker

The market makers in the shares of Baronsmead VCT 2 plc are
Matrix Corporate Capital LLP 020 3206 7000

Singer Capital Markets 020 3205 7500
wWinterflood 020 3100 0251

Breakdown of Shareholdings

The shareholdings of ordmary shares as at 30 September 2010 (excluding shares held 1n Treasury) are analysed as follows

Oreiey SHAeS
Bt Ny
ot 1otat
Humner ot fumber of Numger ot Porcs nege
Szt of shareholding sharcholders shareholders shdres of shpes
1 - 2000 FAES 570 312,360 0 46
2001 - 5000 948 515 3 440 282 512
5001 - 10000 939 249 7 069 965 10 52
10001 - 25000 984 26 1 16 214,541 414
25601 - 50000 451 Y197 16,117 587 1399
50001 — 100000 165 438 11193 815 16 66
More than 10000+ 67 178 12 827 18 19 10
Total 3,769 100 00 67,176,288 100 00
Financial Calendar
11 January 2011 Thirteenth Annual General Meeting
May 2011 Announcement and posting of interim report for the six months to 31 March 2011
November 2011 Announcement and posting of final results for year to 30 September 2011

Additional Information

The information provided i this report has been produced n order for shareholders to be informed of the activities of
the Company during the period it covers SIS EP LLP docs not give investment advice and the naming of companies 1n

thus report 1s not a recommendation to deal in them

Baronsmead VCT 2 plc 1s managed by 1SIS CP LLP which 1y Authorised and regulated by the FSA Past performance 15 not

necessanly a guide to future performance Stockmarkets and currency movements may cause the value of investments
and the mncome from them to fall as well as rise and mvestors may not get back the amount they originally invested
Where investments are made m unqueted securities and smaller companies, therr potential volatiity may increase the

risk to the value of, and the income from, the investment

1%
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Corporate Information

Directors

Clive Anthony Parritt (Chairman)
Gilhan Nott OBE'+t

Howard Goldring*

Secretary
[SIS EP LLP

Registered Office
100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN

Investment Manager
1S1S EP LLP

100 Wood Street

London EC2V 7AN

Investor Relations
Michael Probin
Tel Q20 7506 5796

Registered Number
03504214

*Chairman of the Audit Commuttee
Chairman of Nomination Commuttiee
+Charrman of Management Engagement and Remuneration Commuittee

5ot Independent Direclor

warning to Shareholders

Registrars and Transfer Office
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 6Z7Z

Tel 0870 703 0137

Brokers

Matrix Corporate Capital LLP
One Vine Street

London W1J 0AM

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh EH1 2EG

Solicitors
Martineau

No 1 Colmore Square
Birmungham B4 6AA

VCT Status Adviser

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1 Embankment Place
London WC2N 6RH

Website

www baronsmeadvcet2 co uk

Many companies are aware that their shareholders have recerved unsolicited phone calls or correspondence concerning
nvestment matters These are typrcally from overseas based ““brokers” who target UK shareholders offering to sell
them what often turn out to be worthless or high risk shares in U5 or UK investments They can be very persistent and
extremely persuasive Shareholders are therefore advised to be very wary of any unsohcited advice, offers to buy shares

at a discount or offers for free company reports

Please note that 1t 15 very unhikely that exther the Company or the Company Registrar, Computershare, would make
unsohated telephone calls to shareholders and that any such calls would relate only to official documentation already
arculated to shareholders and never in respect of nvestment “'advice”

If you are in any doubt about the verauty of an unsolicited phone call, please calt either the

the numbers provided on page 48

Company or the Registrar at



